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Financial Highlights
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Year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010 Change
EERMECBETT) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$'000)
W zs Revenue 2,423,528 1,806,334 34%
BR 5% B ) Profit before tax 421,574 208,696 102%
IN/NEIEE S SF N Profit attributable to equity holders
i fayenyl of the Company 343,263 153,500 124%
BELHE Total assets 3,832,536 3,493,038 10%
e g Shareholders’ funds 2,758,330 2,464,066 12%
BT Issued share capital 62,926 62,919 0%
MENE EFE Net current assets 1,695,960 1,456,957 16%
BREE PER SHARE DATA
SRRERBFICEM) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 54.6 24.4 124%
SRR RECEML) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 27.0 12.0 125%
EREEFECET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.4 39 13%
FEHKLEE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
PR EHRE (%) Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 13.1 6.4 105%
T EELELRE(%) Return on average total assets (%) 9.4 4.8 96%
JL Jo= > ey
Iz (B & #
Share Price Information
FrE R E LS Tk i
All share prices are expressed in Hong Kong dollars
2011 2010 2009
55 RiK 5] &I 54 53 i
Highest Lowest Highest Lowest Highest Lowest
—E=f Jan — Mar 4.81 3.82 2.99 2.18 1.78 1.22
IEVAYE Apr — Jun 4.68 3.30 3.35 2.43 2.49 1.32
+Z=NA Jul — Sep TEFAN/A TEAN/A 3.51 2.85 2.80 1.90
+&+=A4 Oct — Dec TEFAN/A FEAN/A 4.85 3.20 2.50 2.02
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Business Review

For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Group registered total
turnover of HK$2,424 million (2010: HK$1,806 million), an increase
of 34% over last year. Profit attributable to equity holders grew by
124% to HK$343 million (2010: HK$154 million). Excluding the special
one-off net gain on disposal of interest in property of HK$84.57 million,
profit attributable to equity holders amounted to HK$259 million.

During this financial year, China continued to lead the worldwide
economy in recovering from the depths of the global financial crisis and
continued rapid growth, registering a growth rate of 10.3% in GDP.

During this financial year, the Chinese Government’s easy monetary
policy and fiscal measures in favour of the electric appliances and
automotive industries continued to drive growth in domestic economy.
Developments in these industries remained the only bright spot in the
economy, bringing about an immense business opportunity for large to
ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding machines. The Group continued
to invest more resources in the development and production of large-
tonnage injection moulding machines, including further building up its
large-tonnage injection moulding machines production capacity in both
of its manufacturing facilities in Shenzhen and Shunde.

In addition, the Group entered into strategic collaboration agreements
with  Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Plastic Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Mitsubishi”), a globally well-known enterprise in Japan, in March
2011, regarding the license and OEM manufacturing of large-tonnage
two-platen injection moulding machines, to further enhance the Group’s
technical capabilities in this important product category.

The cooperation with Mitsubishi demonstrates the Group’s level of
competence in the manufacturing of large-tonnage two-platen injection
moulding machines, and definitely will help the development of this
category of new products which promises to deliver unprecedented
levels in energy efficiency and price-performance. Leveraging on
Mitsubishi’s deep experience and track record within the automotive
and electric appliances markets, the Group believes that this cooperation
will speed up the pace of penetrating these industries.
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Chairman’s Statement

Future Prospects

China’s economic growth is expected to ease during the coming year
due to the unwinding of monetary stimuli as well as administrative
restrictions placed to hedge against overheating economy by the
Central Government. The World Bank has forecasted China’s GDP
growth rate to fall to around 8.7% in 2011. Although these measures
will curb inflation and potential asset bubble, as well as ensure steady
growth in the China economy, tightening monetary policies and the
subsequent credit crunch will definitely be affecting the Group’s
customers in different aspects. Moreover, inflation and general increases
in labour costs will continue to exert pressure on domestic enterprises
in China. Still, amid the challenges mentioned above, the Group will
strive to remain competitive through effective cost control, integrated
automation and development of new products.

Despite the gradual economic recovery in the European and the U.S.
regions, visibility is still low due to fragile economic conditions, such
as overloaded national debts, on-going budget deficits, elevated oil
prices and high unemployment rates. These factors inevitably weaken
consumer sentiment and any economic rebound in the European and
the U.S. regions. The Group will take appropriate actions but remain
optimistic in facing the upcoming challenges ahead.

The Group will continue to invest in technological innovation as its core
competitive strategy and will further enhance its existing technologies in
energy-saving and two-platen large-tonnage injection moulding machines.
With the cooperation with Mitsubishi, all new products will be designed
for environmental friendliness and high energy efficiency, which will form
the basis for sustaining the Group’s leading position in the industry.

The Chen Hsong Group will continue to uphold its core operating beliefs
in industrious and pragmatic approach and will do its utmost to take
advantage of opportunities emerging from the economic recovery.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to give my heartfelt
thanks to all shareholders of Chen Hsong Group, customers, suppliers,
business partners, banks for their long term support and the loyal and
industrious employees for their contribution over the years.

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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Business Performance

Forthefinancial year ended 31 March 2011, the Group registered record
turnover of HK$2,424 million (2010: HK$1,806 million), increase of
34% over last year. Profit attributable to equity holders grew by 124%
to HK$343 million (2010: HK$154 million). Basic earnings per share
is HK54.6 cents (2010: HK24.4 cents). Profit attributable to equity
holders includes a special one-off net gain of HK$84.57 million due to
the disposal of indirect interests in the Shanghai Ciro’s Plaza during the
first half of the financial year.

On 29 March 2011, the Group signed strategic cooperation agreements
with  Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Plastic Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Mitsubishi”) of Japan.

Mitsubishi is one of the top injection moulding machine manufacturers
in the world, and the leading and largest in Japan, specializing in the
production of medium-to-ultra-large tonnage electric as well as large-to-
ultra-large tonnage two-platen hydraulic injection moulding machines.
The MMV series of large and ultra-large tonnage two-platen hydraulic
injection moulding machines produced by Mitsubishi has been a
market-leading product line for over 20 years and well received by high-
end customers and commands absolute market share among Japanese
automotive parts industry.

This strategic cooperation between the Chen Hsong Group and
Mitsubishi focuses on the development of an all-new MMX series of
large-to-ultra-large tonnage two-platen hydraulic injection moulding
machines, which is an enhanced model based on the said MMV series
and emll series, Mitsubishi’s hot-selling series of hybrid electric large
and ultra-large tonnage two-platen injection moulding machines. The
new MMX series, which will incorporate Mitsubishi’s state-of-the-art
technology and a number of cutting-edge innovative breakthroughs, will
be an all-round, significant improvement in speed, precision, stability,
reliability, durability, efficiency, energy-saving and price-performance
over Mitsubishi’s existing MMV series.
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Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

The Mitsubishi all-new MMX series injection moulding machines will
be OEM-manufactured at the Group’s Shenzhen Chen Hsong Industrial
Park, to be co-managed by a top-tier team of experts from Mitsubishi
and Chen Hsong in order to ensure world-class quality standards while
fully leveraging the Group’s economy of scale to control costs —a match
in perfection. In addition, the Group will also launch a series of Chen
Hsong'’s own brand name products which applies the same technology
and standard of MMX series under the license provided by Mitsubishi,
which will be uniquely positioned to fill a supply gap currently existing
between the locally manufactured and high-end imported large-
tonnage injection moulding machines. The Group believes that this new
series will be popular in many high-end domestic consumer product
industries such as automotive, high-end household appliances, large
LCD TV's etc..

Market-wise the current financial year witnessed red-hot growth in
China’s domestic economy, and was especially strong for industries
related to automotive and real estate (including electric appliances and
general household goods etc.) — all requiring primarily medium-to-large
tonnage injection moulding machines.

EASYMASTER

EM120-5VFi2

FHE_NREIRBEED ETRE T 2B
EASYMASTER Second Generation Servo Drive Energy-saving Injection Moulding Machine
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Although western economies in Europe and the U.S. have begun to
rebound, though sluggishly and even over-shadowed by a number of
faster-growing developing countries. Consequently, world-wide demand
for injection moulding machines continued to concentrate in China, and
typically in domestic consumption market, because the export sector
has so-far been hampered by weak economic conditions in Europe and
the U.S..

During this financial year, market demand for medium-to-large tonnage
injection moulding machines (primarily used for the manufacture
of automotive parts and electric appliances) grew so rapidly that the
normal supply chain for parts and components was severely disrupted
and stressed, resulting in limited shipments to the Group. The Group
has already ramped its production capacity for small-tonnage injection
moulding machines (primarily used for the manufacture of export
products such as mobile phones and consumer electronics, etc.)
fully up to pre-financial crisis level, and was rapidly raising production
capacity for medium-to-large tonnage injection moulding machines,
plus redoubling efforts to develop new suppliers and reduce over-
dependence on the existing supply chain. Nevertheless, the Group
was still plagued by shortages of key raw materials and components,
as well as labour shortages in the coastal regions, which limited its
production capacity for medium-to-large tonnage injection moulding
machines, resulting in the loss of many orders that the Group did not
have inventory to fulfill.

Despite these limitations, the Group still managed to grow its turnover
in China market by 29% to exceed the past record sales volume. The
Group believes that its production capacity for medium-to-large tonnage

injection moulding machines will be fully recovered by September
2011.

JETMASTER

JAPTHO0- ST

RHE _RARIEEN AT AT 2B
JETMASTER Second Generation Servo Drive Large Energy-saving Injection Moulding Machine
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Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the year
ended 31 March 2011 is as follows:

2011 2010
(B¥EET) (B¥EET) L)
EF i Customer Location (HK$ million) (HK$ million)  Change
AR K BE & B Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,753 1,359 +29%
=y Taiwan 148 109 +36%
E b oMeIsR Other overseas countries 523 338 +55%
2,424 1,806 +34%
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BEe FEERIHRRMELERS R
NEMSZAEAEZEPRBNES /G
AL —ER2NRETH] [5EF
TH] [BERBERISHE  EF
FEFEZRE - PRMATETERETF
EHEERKAENE— AEHEB
1,300 & - 0 BA4F A A & 531,500
B ERBMNREMSTET - ML
FEHEEBRE LRFHACRENT KK
K THES-RHRET  FRIZ
EERERAERGNP - KB EHS
o EEREERAFLR - DWRRA
A PFREAYBEEREHEASEH®
BRERNANDZ—  BIEBERKEF
WIDARAGHEEHEE T BRI H KA
@ °

China’s export sector was still hampered by weak western economies
in Europe and the U.S. while its domestic consumption continued to
experience red-hot growth after a series of measures introduced by
the Central Government during the financial crisis, such as electric-
appliances-to-rural, automotive-to-rural, taxation benefits for vehicle
purchases etc.. In particular, China’s automotive industry, with over
13 million cars sold last year and targeting 15 million next year, already
eclipsed the U.S. as the largest in the world. The red-hot automotive
market further joined forces with rapid demand growth for “white-
goods” (i.e. household electric appliances) driven by escalating
real-estate prices to create an extremely robust market for injection
moulding machines at a level seldom seen, especially for medium-to-
large tonnage injection moulding machines used for these high-growth
industries. Analysts noticed that per-capita automotive ownership in
China remained only one-fifth of developed countries (Europe, the U.S.
and Japan), and expected the automotive industry to continue to drive
domestic economic growth in China for the next few years.
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Market supply of medium-to-large tonnage injection moulding machines
buckled under such huge demand increases, and indirectly causing
severe shortages in the supply chain for raw materials and components.
The Group’s production capacity of large tonnage injection moulding
machines had not yet fully recovered and, driven also by limitations
in the supply chain, was forced to forego many orders for medium-
to-large tonnage injection moulding machines. Despite this, the Group
still managed its turnover growth in China market by almost 30% to
HK$1.753 billion (2010: HK$1.359 billion) by fully leveraging its
existing capacity, continuing to lift capacity caps, and expanding its
supply chain network.

Turnover in the Taiwan market, heavily dependent upon exports, still
managed to increase by 36% to HK$148 million (2010: HK$109
million), though dragged down by the weak economic recovery in the
European and the U.S. regions. It is expected that the Taiwan market
will recover in sync with improvements in the European and the U.S.
economies.

Internationally, a number of developing countries displayed more
pronounced signs of economic recovery especially South East Asia,
Middle East, South America and Eastern Europe. Western Europe and
the U.S., on the other hand, were sluggish. During this financial year,
the Group’s sales in international markets rose 55% over last year to
HK$523 million (2010: HK$338 million).

SUPERMASTER

SM50P

BEEBHEREEBHR
SUPERMASTER All Electric Energy-saving Injection Moulding Machine
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Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

Disposal of Interest in Ciro’s Plaza, Shanghai

On 16 April 2010, Chen Hsong Marketing International Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of its
indirect interests of 13.43% in Shanghai Ciro’s Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Ciro’s Real Estate”) for a consideration of HK$94.74 million, resulting
in a one-off net gain of HK$84.57 million. The major asset of Ciro’s
Real Estate consists of the “Ciro’s Plaza” in Shanghai. The Group had
held this indirect interest in the “Ciro’s Plaza” for around 15 years since
1995. As investing in property is not within the Group’s core business,
the Group decided to dispose of this indirect interest at market price.

Strategic Cooperation with Mitsubishi

During this financial year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
signed two agreements with Mitsubishi on 29 March 2011:

1. License Agreement: Mitsubishi grants a license, on a long term
basis, to certain subsidiaries of the Company of the exclusive rights
in the People’s Republic of China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
(the “Territories”) using Mitsubishi’s technologies and know-how
necessary for the manufacture and sale of large-tonnage two-
platen injection moulding machines (the “Products”) and the non-
exclusive right in selling the Products outside the Territories (except
Japan) pursuant to the terms of the agreement; and

2. OEM Manufacturing and Supply Agreement: Mitsubishi appoints
certain subsidiaries of the Company, on a long term basis,
as Mitsubishi’s exclusive manufacturers in the Territories to
manufacture large-tonnage two-platen injection moulding machines
according to product specifications provided by Mitsubishi
pursuant to the terms of the agreement.
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Development of New Products and Technologies

In addition to the strategic cooperation with Mitsubishi as described
above, the Group also launched a “second generation” series of high-
efficiency, high-precision, servo-driven energy-saving injection moulding
machines — the “SVP/2" series.

The first generation “SVP” series of servo-driven injection moulding
machines was introduced by the Group two years ago amid wide
popularity in the market. Sales rose rapidly after launch and the
technology was quickly expanded to large-tonnage injection moulding
machines ranging from 650 to 2,600 tons to complete an entire servo-
driven energy-saving product line (from small to ultra-large).

The new, second generation “SVP/2" series is a quantum leap over
the first generation with significant enhancements in speed, precision,
stability, energy-efficiency, energy-saving, and price-performance. It
is the result of the Group’s application of advanced technology and
intelligent control techniques to improve operating efficiency, which
will lead the injection moulding machine industry into a new era of
environmentally-safe, low carbon footprint manufacturing.

JETMASTER

FEFAIE —RAIRES AT 22
JETMASTER Ai Second Generation Servo Drive Energy-saving Injection Moulding Machine
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Production Efficiency and Capacity

The Group’s new production plant situated in Shunde, Foshan,
Guangdong Province, was completed and fully on-line during the
second half of this financial year. The gross floor area of this new facility
exceeds 70,000m? and is fully equipped to manufacture medium-
to-large tonnage injection moulding machines. As at the end of this
financial year, the Group has recovered its production capacity of
medium-to-large tonnage injection moulding machines to around
85% of the pre-financial crisis level, and total recovery is expected by
September 2011.

With newly-acquired machining centres arriving by the second half
of this year, and the third phase expansion project of the Shenzhen
Chen Hsong Industrial Park (with gross floor area exceeding 80,000m?)
commenced in the first half of 2011 and expected to be progressively
put into use in 2012, the Group’s production capacity of medium-to-
large tonnage injection moulding machines will be further enhanced.

HRER S BT AR KA R AR EA M
SUPERMASTER Two Platen Advanced Energy-saving Injection Moulding Machine
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Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,696
million (2010: HK$1,457 million), which represented a 16% increase
over last year. Included in the net current assets were cash and bank
balances (including pledged deposits) of HK$944 million (2010:
HK$864 million), an increase of HK$80 million over last year, and bank
borrowings of HK$90 million (2010: HK$42 million), an increase of
HK$48 million. The Group recorded a net cash position of HK$854
million (2010: HK$822 miillion). The bank borrowings were short term
with floating interest rates for payments to suppliers in Japanese yen.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with appropriate
levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of the Group’s
investments and operations.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2011, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries operating in
Mainland China of HK$58 million (2010: HK$33 million) were pledged
for securing certain loans granted by certain financial institutions in
Mainland China to third parties, and of HK$36 million (2010: HK$62
million) were pledged for securing bank acceptance notes, included in
the trade and bills payables, to suppliers.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had capital commitments of HK$47
million (2010: HK$32 million) in respect of the construction of industrial
buildings and the purchases of property, plant and equipment in
Mainland China which are mainly to be funded by internal resources
of the Group.
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Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent and centralized approach in managing
its funding. Funds, primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S.
dollars, New Taiwan dollars and Renminbi, are normally placed with
banks in short or medium term deposits for the working capital of the
Group.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had total foreign currency borrowings
equivalent to HK$90 million (2010: HK$42 million). The Group, from
time to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain volatile foreign
currencies and manages it in appropriate manner to minimize the risk.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2011, the Group provided guarantees to financial

institutions in connection with facilities granted to third parties
amounted to HK$145 million (2010: HK$87 million).

MINIJET

B R ARER BN AR AL )T 2B 4

MINIJET Servo Drive Energy-saving Injection Monlding Machine
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Human Resources

As at 31 March 2011, the Group, excluding its associates, had
approximately 3,000 (2010: 2,800) full-time employees. The Group
offers good remuneration and welfare packages to its employees and
maintains market-competitive pay levels. Employees are rewarded
based on individual as well as the results performance of the Group.
Share options of the Company are granted to selected employees of the
Group for rewarding and retaining talents.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Future Prospects

It is expected that the Chinese Government reduce China’s GDP growth
target to within 8.5-9.0%, and will continue its monetary tightening
policies (including raising interest rate and reserve ratio, limitations
placed on purchases of real estate and vehicles etc.) in a bid to combat
inflation and economic overheating. These policies are likely to further
shrink credit, tighten money supply and reduce free cash available to
the Group’s customers.

With lack-lustre economic conditions in Europe and the U.S., sluggish
economic recoveries, high budget deficits and debt burdens, the Group
expects the market next year to be challenging. Nevertheless, the Group
will continue to aggressively pursue any available market opportunities
at times like this, strike a fine balance between nurturing financially-
sound customers and controlling receivables risks, and face upcoming
challenges with a positive and proactive attitude.
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Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG GBM, OBE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE,

aged 87

Chairman

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He is
the Chairman of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the Group
and The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was appointed
Hong Kong Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory Committee of
College of Management, National Chung Cheng University. Dr. Chiang is
also the Economy Advisor of Shandong Provincial People’s Government
and the Honorary President of The Research Centre for Market-Economy
of Peking University. In addition, Dr. Chiang is the Honorary Chairman
of the Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal Industries and the
Hong Kong Electrical Appliances Manufacturers Association. Dr. Chiang
founded Chiang Chen Industrial Institute situated at his hometown of
Heze City of Shandong Province in 1999. He is the father of Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.

Lai Yuen CHIANG BA, aged 45

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2000. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and is responsible for the management and business development of
the Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of
the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. She holds a bachelor degree
of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has extensive experience
in production management, sales and marketing. Ms. Chiang is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited (listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). She is also a standing
committee member of the Shenzhen Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Vice-Chairman of the Shenzhen
Federation of Industrial Economics and Vice-President of China
Shenzhen Machinery Association. Ms. Chiang is also the Vice-President
of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, a member of the
Standing Committee on Directorate Salaries and Conditions of Service
of The Government of the Hong Kong SAR, a member of the Council
of both The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and The
Open University of Hong Kong. Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in 2004. She is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s daughter and the sister
of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Chi Kin CHIANG BSc, aged 44

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He was also appointed President — Group
Manufacturing with effect from 1 May 2009 responsible for the
manufacturing function of the Group. Mr. Chiang holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company and is a Director of Chen
Hsong Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor degree of Applied Science in Industrial
Design from Rochester Institute of Technology, New York. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chiang had six years’ experience in industrial
design, working for a multinational company in the U.S.A.. Mr. Chiang
is a member of the Guangdong Committee of Chinese People’s Palitical
Consultative Conference, Vice Chairman of China Plastics Machinery
Industry Association and Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. He
is Dr. Chen CHIANG's son and the brother of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG MBA, BSc, aged 44

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.

Sam Hon Wah NG BSc Econ, MBA, MAF, DBA, ACA, FCPA,

aged 51

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. Mr. Ng holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was engaged in
financial management with several multinational companies. He
has extensive cross-border financial management, mergers and
acquisitions, and corporate development experience. Mr. Ng is
responsible for managing special projects and corporate governance
of the Group. He holds an honour degree in Economics at the London
School of Economics (University of London), a master degree of Applied
Finance at the Macquarie University (Australia), an MBA degree from
The City University Business School (England) and a Doctor of Business
Administration degree from the University of Newcastle (Australia).
Mr. Ng is a Chartered Accountant, an associate member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN BA, BSSc, aged 50

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is
currently a Director of IB Partners Pte Limited. Mr. Tan has over
20 years experience in investment banking based out of New York,
Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles with leading
financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie
and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was the Chief
Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia corporate
finance business. He has advised major corporations and government
authorities across the region. During the period from 9 September 2005
to 7 November 2006, Mr. Tan was an independent director of Pacific
Internet Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market.
Mr. Tan graduated from the National University of Singapore and was a
recipient of the Lim Tay Boh gold medal and NUS Economics Society
Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI BSc, MBA, FHKIoD,

aged 45

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business
interests in Hong Kong, Europe, the Former Soviet Union, Africa
and the Middle East. He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A.,
India and Hong Kong and holds an MBA degree from the University
of San Diego. Mr. Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the
emerging markets and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances
manufacturers in China — many of whom have in house moulding
facilities. He is the former Chairman for both the North Asia Region
and the Hong Kong Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization.
Mr. Lalvani is a committee member of the Asian Cultural Council, a
Director of Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong Limited
and a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBS, JP, aged 46

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. He is a
graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He has been elected
a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic
of China since January 2008. He is a former member of both the
Executive Council and the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is the Chairman of each of the Council
for Sustainable Development, the Antiquities Advisory Board, the
Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings, the Council
of Lingnan University and Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council. In
addition, he serves as the Vice-chairperson of The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service and the Vice Chairman of the Oxfam Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan is currently an Executive Director and the President of both
Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited
and an advisor to Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong
Branch. He is a Non-executive Director of City e-Solutions Limited and
New Heritage Holdings Ltd., an Independent Non-executive Director
of each of China Resources Enterprise, Limited and Yau Lee Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan since
April 2007 has been an Independent Non-executive Director of Wing
Lung Bank Limited, which was delisted from the Stock Exchange on
16 January 2009. He retired as an Independent Non-executive Director
of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange)
on 3 May 2011.

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA, aged 50

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is the
Managing Director of MAP Capital Limited, an investment management
company. Mr. Lee started his career in the investment industry in 1987
and has since held senior management positions in multinational
investment companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services
Limited and Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia
Strategic Investment Management Limited in 1995. He was educated
in the U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Bowdoin
College and a Master of Business Administration Degree from Boston
University. Mr. Lee was a member of each of the Main Board and
Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and an Independent Non-
executive Director of Tai Ping Carpets International Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange) between August 1998 and June 2010. He is a
Non-executive Director of Hysan Development Company Limited, an
Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and Trinity Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange; and a Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

Except as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the financial year ended
31 March 2011.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company,
after having made specific enquiries of all directors, confirms that all
directors have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Code of Conduct and the Model Code throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2011.
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Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Note:
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman) is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Executive Director).

The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 17 to 20
of this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group’s business.

Under the second limb of Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The directors of the Company (except the Chairman of
the Company) are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years as the Chen Hsong Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991
of Bermuda provides that the chairman and managing director of the
Company are not required to retire by rotation.
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Role and responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.

Delegation to management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to the
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities of
the Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group'’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

Board meetings and attendance

The Board held four regular meetings throughout the year at
approximately quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and
the operating and financial performance of the Group. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings
in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to
all directors for all regular Board meetings, and all directors are given
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft
minutes of Board meetings are circulated to all directors for comments.
Minutes of Board meetings with details of matters considered by the
Board and decision reached are kept by the Company Secretary and
open for inspection by the directors.
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During the financial year, four regular Board meetings were held and
the attendance record of each director is as follows:

HERE, SRR
EEnE Number of meetings HiER
Name of director attended / held Attendance rate
BEEL 4/4 100%
Dr. Chen CHIANG
BRIt 4/4 100%
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
BEEAE 4/4 100%
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG
SEMR 4/4 100%
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
RmESAE 4/4 100%
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
PRE A4 4/4 100%
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANISE 4 4/4 100%
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PR B 3/4 75%
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
MFELE 4/4 100%
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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The agenda and accompanying board papers for regular Board
meetings are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days
before the date of a Board meeting. All directors have access to board
papers and related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who ensures that board procedures and applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Liability insurance for the directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Chen CHIANG is the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Lai Yuen
CHIANG is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly to ensure
their accountability and responsibility with respect to the management
of the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-level
strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the Board, and
oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the Group’s
business operations, and advising the Board of business strategies and
their implementations.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered the independent non-
executive directors are independent within the definition of the Listing
Rules. The independent non-executive director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect
his independence.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of
interest. Board committee comprising independent non-executive
directors will be formed to advise the independent shareholders on
connected transaction to be approved by the independent shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and

guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been
giving to the Board and the Board committees.
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Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE, and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (the
Chief Executive Officer). Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN is the Committee
Chairman. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
posted on the Company’s website.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the remuneration packages of executive directors and
senior management of the Group. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies
and duties and responsibilities of the executive directors and senior
management.

Remuneration of executive directors comprises salary, performance
related bonus, share options and pension scheme contributions.
Information about directors’ emoluments during the financial year
ended 31 March 2011 and the Company’s share option scheme are
set out in notes 9 and 31 respectively to the financial statements of this
annual report.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during this financial
year. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE, BB
E=png Number of meeting =R
Name of director attended / held Attendance rate
PRES BT 1/1 100%
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANISE 4 1/1 100%
Mr. Anish LALVANI
BB 1/1 100%
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
FFEHLE 1/1 100%
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed and approved matters relating to the salaries and
bonus of the executive directors (also being the senior management
of the Company), after assessing the individual performance and
in consultation with the proposals of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. No individual director took part in voting about his/
her own remuneration at the meeting.

Nomination of Directors

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The directors
participate in the assessment and selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. Individuals, suitably qualified are identified and nominated
to the Board. The selection criteria for Board membership include
professional expertise, high standards of relevant skills, high levels
of integrity and business ethics, and demonstrable competence as
required by a director of a listed company. A candidate to be appointed
as an independent non-executive director must meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As there was no
appointment of new director during the financial year, no Board meeting
was convened for that purpose.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN,
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE. Mr. Anish
LALVANI is the Committee Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating to
the Group’s financial reporting and internal control and overseeing the
Company’s relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines set out by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and have been
updated to comply with the CG Code. The updated terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are posted on the Company’s website.
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HERE GERE
BEEnA Number of meeting(s) HER
Name of director attended / held Attendance rate
Anish LALVANISE A4 2/2 100%
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PR YL 2/2 100%
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
PRES B 1/2 50%
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
FFELE 2/2 100%
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BAUAEEE2FE PR BRRZE

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Audit Committee had:

reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with

MEME R N M - 7 B2 SN BB AZ SUAT ET respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
ol auditors;

o EEjeips& auzlﬁ@j} » DA FEE R reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts on
EEMERERFE the Group’s financial statements;

o EHMINELBEBEREZ HGERE
BRE 2 DOfE

o BLUEEIMNEIZBEDIE RS MR H
BEZERN

o I AKBAEEESE AL ;

o MIANBAZABBRERTEEER
R UREEEZRIE:
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reviewed the external auditors’ letter to the Management and
responses of the Management;

made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
and reviewed their audit fees;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of the Management;
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e reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group;

e reviewed, in particular, the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget;
and

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

External auditors’ remuneration for the financial year ended
31 March 2011 amounted to a total of HK$2,031,000, of which
HK$1,850,000 was incurred for audit services and HK$181,000 for
non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2011 have been audited by the external auditors,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group which were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 49 to 50 of this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Group has established internal controls in material aspects of
its business. The internal control system comprising a well-designed
organizational structure that facilitates segregation of duties,
comprehensive operational and financial controls, and effective risk
management. The Management, which comprises senior staff and
operating heads of different business units, is primarily responsible for
the design, implementation, and improvement of internal controls. The

Board oversees internal governance and the Management's activities.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. Through the Audit Committee
and the Group’s Internal Audit Department, the Board has conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of the internal control system for
the year ended 31 March 2011 which also included the consideration
on the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee has been established by the Board to conduct
regular checking on internal governance and compliance, and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Audit
Committee comprises independent non-executive directors who are
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee appoints
and delegates to the Group’s Internal Audit Department the major role
in monitoring the Group’s compliance with policies and standards and
reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls through frequent auditing
of the business of different units across the Group. The Group’s Internal
Audit Department plans its internal audit activities annually and submits
the internal audit plan to the Audit Committee for review and approval.
Regular internal audit reports are presented to the Audit Committee and
any proposed corrective actions are properly followed up. The Audit
Committee also meets with the Company’s external auditors regularly.
Matters raised in the letter to the Management from the external auditors
are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through publication of interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars to shareholders. To enable the
shareholders and investors have timely access to updated information
about the Group, the Company’s website (www.chenhsong.com.hk)
contains important corporate information, annual and interim reports,
as well as announcements and circulars issued by the Company.
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The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
announcement of interim and final results. Face-to-face meetings and
conference calls with institutional investors and investment analysts
are conducted on a regular basis to make sure that shareholders and
potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. Toensure all shareholders and potential investors receive equal
access to information at the same time, information considered to be
of a price sensitive nature is released by publication of announcements
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 20 clear business days
prior notice is given. The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration Committees (or in
their absence, other members of the Committee) are available to answer
shareholders’ questions at the annual general meeting. In addition, a
representative of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the external audit
and the audit report.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort
to attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions put
to the vote of a general meeting were by way of a poll. The results of the
voting by poll were published on the website of the Stock Exchange and
the Company’s website.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor Relations
Department. The contact details are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 51 to 145 of this annual report.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK19
cents per ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 5 September 2011.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable
to shareholders on or about 22 September 2011. The proposed final
dividend, together with the interim dividend of HK8 cents per ordinary
share paid on 13 January 2011, makes a total dividend of HK27 cents
per ordinary share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
152 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements of the Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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Issued Share Capital

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme and details of movements in
share options of the Company during the year are set out in note 31 to
the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The details of
movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 55 to 56
of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2011, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$292,866,000, of which HK$119,559,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$628,000 (2010: HK$274,000).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existing during the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer) *
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN *
Mr. Anish LALVANI+*

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN +*
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE **

+ Members of the Audit Committee

*

Members of the Remuneration Committee

In accordance with Bye-law 189(viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Messrs. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG, Bernard Charnwut CHAN and
Michael Tze Hau LEE will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 17 to 20 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive directors of the Company.



EERBEH

BRI BRITZARRRREFAE L
BEETZES  BEEARBTILA
RAPNAIR—FANAEREEOS TR
TERRSN) i Al F ALK IE 2 BRIG & 4Y

EENEHNZER

GRABREEMREESN  ARF - HH
EZEER AR - HERRKREENE
RAAWEET LS R AR EERMES
ERFMEEZTEENNE  RAFER
REINERNEAKREANERZEES
#) o

EERNRG - EERORES 2B
wmRRR

RZE—F=ZA=+—H ARAZ
B 317 & 8 I & B 5629,255,6008%
RAABEZERESTHRABRARAS
HAEMABEEE (& R ES KRG
([FHREEED ) EXVED) 2 B&tn ~ #
BRGH REHFTRHBREES RBAEK
PIE3L2MEREE RN AR RIFTRIEFNER
MARzESERAR  IBRBEEBHER
ZBRAA(THAZFT]) &S LR A
(T ETmHRE D+ EmETAESE
TRFRH2BESFAZEFR DM
BRITAE AR A R RZFT2 e KoK
B o

EERBEE
Report of the Directors

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2011, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 629,255,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows.
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(a) RAEQ T RMREERD 2R (a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
¥ N TR
TERRZ
AEBR AR BHAE2 T
2R R zER: Approximate
ERME Interestin  Interest in percentage of the
EEng Nature of ordinary  underlying HEt MizX  Company's issued
Name of director interest shares shares* Total Notes ordinary shares
BE f&A 3,980,000 - 3,980,000 1) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Personal
Hfts 398,013,620 - 398,013,620 3) 63.25%
Other
B fEA 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 (1) 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal
BEER EA 1,744,000 334,000 2,078,000 1) 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Personal
MR &A - 666,000 666,000 (1) 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Personal
REE A 334,000 - 334,000 1) 0.05%
Sam Hon Wah NG Personal
BREE K. EA 484,000 - 484,000 (1) 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Personal
Anish LALVANI EA 220,000 - 220,000 1) 0.03%
Personal
* BRASTET B RER D 2 R AR *  The interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives represent
BARRN Rz BT 2 TR 2 B interests in options granted under the Company’s share option scheme
D MZEERAMREITZR of which they were unissued shares. The details of such interests are
5 o BRAESFIBE NI ISRAMN T set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
31
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(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) Interestsin ordinary shares in Chen Hsong Investments Limited
(“CH Investments”):

HEBRE

EBITRG

2N BEDE

Approximate

i g percentage

R of the issued

EEsA 54 Interest in MisE shares of

Name of director Capacity shares Notes CH Investments

BE EX A AVIUN 66,044,000 (2) 100.00%
Chen CHIANG Founder of
discretionary trusts

BB EREEFRZ 7,823,700 4) 11.85%
Lai Yuen CHIANG BEREZ@mA
Eligible beneficiary of
a discretionary trust

BER FREEFRZ 7,823,700 (5) 11.85%
Chi Kin CHIANG BERERA
Eligible beneficiary of
a discretionary trust
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(i) AARZEEERMLRAAR
B TSI R B ARR (5 2 1B

(ii) Dr. Chen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed
to be interested in the shares of the following associated

corporations:

IR EE AR

BRIE#TRG

2B

Approximate

percentage of the

relevant class of

issued shares of

LB SR Rz ER MisE associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited 1 A% AT HE B (D (3) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

BEEEERAF 2 IRERAR (3), (6) 100.00%
Equaltex Investment Limited 2 ordinary shares

Gondmyne Limited 100,000% & @A (3), (6) 100.00%
100,000 ordinary shares

HMETER AR 2 lRE @A 3), (7 100.00%
Desee Limited 2 ordinary shares

ZEBARRQTA 2 I E AR (3), (7) 100.00%
Desko Limited 2 ordinary shares

BXBR AT 2 IREmAR (3), (7) 100.00%
Goman Limited 2 ordinary shares

=Hh AR AT 2 IREmAR (3), (7) 100.00%
Koyoki Limited 2 ordinary shares

FIEBRAR] 2 lRE @A 3), (7) 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares

R AR RTA 2 R E AR (3), (7) 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares

BEMTBRAR 2 IREmAR (3), (7) 100.00%

Potachi Limited
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EEEEE AR
HRE#ITRG
2N B
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

LB E B RG22 = it =E associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
]l YNG| 2 S AR 3), (7) 100.00%

Parot Limited

FEBRAR]
Rikon Limited

HhEAR QA
Semicity Limited

FdtER A A
Sibeland Limited

SEXARAT

Sumei Limited

Granwich Limited

BB ERBIRAREERBER AT

Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services Limited

Kadom Limited

HIBERAR AT

Keyset Development Limited

Oriental Triumph Investments Limited

2 ordinary shares

2 RE AR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 IREmAR 3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 IREEAR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 RE AR (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

1 iR imAx (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

52,570,000 (3), (6) 75.10%
gl
52,570,000

ordinary shares

2 IREmAR (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

10 B imAx (3), (6) 100.00%
10 ordinary shares

1 IREmAR (3), (8) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
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HAEEEE AR
HRIEBITRAE
ZEBHAE D
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

HEEEER ARGz R MiEE associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Pro-Team Pacific Limited 1 @ (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

Tatiara Investment Company Limited 2 REmAR (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

mElEEERAR] 1 IRE AR (3), (6) 100.00%
Value Creation Group Limited 1 ordinary share

EDREARAT 1 IRE B (3), (6) 100.00%
Global Asia Investments Limited 1 ordinary share

Assetwise Holdings Limited 1 B (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

EEREERRAT] 1 BREmAR (3,9 100.00%
KCI Investments Limited 1 ordinary share

ERAABREERAR] 1 ik (3), (9 100.00%
Maxford H.K. Investments Limited 1 ordinary share

EHYIRFHEERRAR 5,000,000 A% (3), (6) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Logistics Services B ERERERD
Company Limited 5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

B EEMAR AR 50,000,000 A% (3), (6) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, ERERERERN,
Limited 50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

B (FE) REARAF 2 i& (3), (6) 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment EREREELERD
Company Limited 2 non-voting
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Notes:

1)

2

Such interests are held in the capacity as beneficial owner.

This represents the collective interest indirectly held by Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited, trustee of two discretionary trusts, namely,
The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation (“Charity
Foundation”) and The Chiangs’ Family Foundation (“Family
Foundation”), which respectively hold 88.15% and 11.85%
interests in the issued share capital of CH Investments. By
virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested
in the aforesaid discretionary trusts as he is the settlor of both
discretionary trusts and may be regarded as founder of such
discretionary trusts.

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 88.15% controlling
interest in CH Investments, in turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited is wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited being the trustee of the Charity Foundation in
which, by virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be
interested as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may
be regarded as founder of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the SFO
by virtue of her being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the
Family Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the
SFO by virtue of him being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the
Family Foundation.
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(6) ZE"mAEHIRERS - (6) Such interests are held by CH Investments.
7) ZEHEHERKREER (7) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited @54 - Gondmyne Limited.
(8) ZEZMEHKREFBEBER (8) Such interest is indirectly held by CH Investments through Keyset
BRAREEES - Development Limited.
(9) ZEERAEEREF BAssetwise (9) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Holdings Limited B #£#54 - Assetwise Holdings Limited.
M EXFrIEREEIN R2ZE——F=H8 Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the directors
=+—H ARBESFHIHRSTHAER or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
WENARA RS E AR EE(ERR in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
FH R HEEOEXVER) 2 & - AR associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
NDEREFTHEREZISFRAERHIZE recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
352{EBE BTN A A B R FAELZMA Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
ZEERSORE - SIBIEIZAEST AT Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
ARBTTHE RN B R P 2 7 g oA
ﬁ o
EEREROIES ZEF Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
REA - ARRAESIEZRTBRAEL No share options had been granted to or exercised by the directors
BERTHITFEERE R ——F or chief executive of the Company during the year. The outstanding
A= T —HHER{TEZBREFES balances of share options as at 31 March 2011 are set out in note 31 to
REFFSFRFMIFE3L © the financial statements.
Br ESCRTIREEE SN + AR B S E AL AT FT Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
BRARRFAIWERT L EM L HE - BUE any of its subsidiaries a party to arrangements to enable the directors of
ARABEEREBEEARRA SN AR HAMA the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares
FANBRBZEROSIESMEZ ME in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
E BEoTHRABRES 2B ARR none of the directors, chief executive or their spouses or children under
FNARZF R FABERES O REAXR the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company,
NBVBEE 7N - IPEITEEA % or had exercised any such right during the year.
EHER o
EENHREB2ER Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
NZEBE——F=A=+—0H " #HEEM As at 31 March 2011, none of the executive directors had any interest
HITEERNEREEEEHRF oA LB in a business, which competes or may compete with the business of
R R ETE B s o the Group.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2011, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows.

RAEDXTARBZFE Long positions in shares of the Company
LERANE|
ERTEER
2B
ZiER R E Approximate
Number of percentage of the
BRERHR 54 ordinary Ftat Company’s issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares Notes ordinary shares
EIERE & 398,013,620 (1) 63.25%
CH Investments ®mEA
Beneficial
owner
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings RZESNER 2w 398,013,620 1) 63.25%
Limited Interest of
controlled corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited ZFEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.25%
Trustee
BE PREEFEZ LA 398,013,620 (1), (2), (3) 63.25%
Chen CHIANG Founder of
discretionary trust
EnEBA 3,980,000 (3) 0.63%
Beneficial owner
MERIREEIE(EB)ARAT BEEIE 46,274,000 - 7.35%
Schroder Investment Investment
Management Manager
(Hong Kong) Limited
Commonwealth Bank RRIEHER 2 s 37,648,000 (4) 5.98%
of Australia Interest of
controlled corporation
3] ANNUAL REPORT 201 |
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Notes:

(1

This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by
virtue of being the trustees of the Charity Foundation, the relevant shares
are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited which holds 88.15% controlling interest in CH Investments.

The relevant shares are deemed to be interested by Dr. Chen CHIANG by
virtue of the SFO as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may
be regarded as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the capacity
of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares held
by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.

These shares were held by corporations controlled directly or indirectly as
to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no other parties were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly
relate to contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course
of business, which contracts were negotiated on normal commercial
terms and on an arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note
35 to the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 26 March 2010, a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”)
was entered into between Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ") and Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company, Limited (“CHM-SZ"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in which the Company and its subsidiaries including
CHM-SZ would, on non-exclusive basis, purchase steel from CC-SZ for
a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2010. The transaction
value during the year ended 31 March 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$11,323,000 (net of value-added tax).

The Master Agreement had expired by effluxion of time on 31 March
2011 and the renewal master agreement was entered into by the same
parties on 28 March 2011 for a term of three years commencing on
1 April 2011 (the “Renewal Master Agreement”).
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Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors of the
Company, and their respective associates (which are also associates of
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company) together control the
exercise of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien
Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds the entire equity interest of
CC-SZ. Therefore, CC-SZ is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Agreement and the Renewal Master Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions under the Master
Agreement and confirmed that the transactions have been entered
into (1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(2) on normal commercial terms; and (3) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has received a letter from Ernst & Young, the Company’s
auditors, to report on the above continuing connected transactions of
the Group contemplated under the Master Agreement in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group contemplated under the Master
Agreement in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules and
stating that:

(1) thetransactions have received the approval of the board of directors
of the Company;

(2) the transactions have been entered into and conducted in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the transactions;
and

(3) the annual amount of the transactions has not exceeded the cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26 March
2010.
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EERMEE
Report of the Directors

Connected Transaction

On 16 April 2010, Chen Hsong Marketing International Limited
(“CH Marketing”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with CH Investments pursuant to which CH
Marketing conditionally agreed to sell the two shares of HK$1.00 each
in the capital of Keyset Development Limited (“Keyset”), representing
20% of the entire issued share capital of Keyset, to CH Investments for
a consideration of HK$94,740,000 (the “Disposal”). CH Investments
is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, and is therefore a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.11 of the Listing Rules. As such, the Disposal constituted
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Disposal was approved by the independent shareholders (being
shareholders of the Company excluding CH Investments and its
associates) of the Company at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 20 May 2010. The Disposal provided an opportunity
for the Group to realize the value of its investment in Keyset and allow
the Group to deploy additional resources to its core business activities.
The Disposal was completed on 24 May 2010 and the net proceeds
from the Disposal of approximately HK$94,000,000, leading to a net
gain of approximately HK$84,570,000 after tax provision, would be
used as general working capital of the Group.

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
sufficient amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares during the year and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in line
with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
Share options of the Company were granted to selected employees of
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company for attracting
and retaining high talents.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for the remuneration of the directors
who are also senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 31 of this
annual report.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group have been audited by
Ernst & Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 51 to 145, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18" Floor, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central, Hong Kong

22 June 2011
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GEeWEE Consolidated Income Statement

E—FE——F=A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2011
CEMTT) (HK$'000) 17 Notes 2011 2010
&= REVENUE 6 2,423,528 1,806,334
SHER AR Cost of sales (1,778,291) (1,355,571)
EH Gross profit 645,237 450,763
E M UR A R U 55 F 5 Other income and gains, net 126,559 70,445
HERDHET Selling and distribution expenses (196,051) (157,549)
THE H Administrative expenses (136,514) (116,536)
Ehase 5 HE5R Other operating expenses, net (21,891) (42,708)
BB R Finance costs 8 (2,091) (1,856)
FE(EH &N A Share of profits less losses

v AR ET 18 of associates 6,325 6,137
RRBLAT R R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 421,574 208,696
FTiSTi s Income tax expense 11 (75,101) (54,778)
REERR PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 346,473 153,918
BB ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAFERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 343,263 153,500
IEfE i S Non-controlling interests 3,210 418

346,473 153,918

EATEEFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE

EHEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
EARCEM) Basic (HK cents) 54.6 24.4
g OBN) Diluted (HK cents) 54.5 24.4
AREZEMNEZ ZREFFH NI BER Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in
FMIFEL3 - note 13 to the financial statements.
R ANNUAL REPORT 201 | 5].
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BE_T——F=A=t+—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2011

CEETFT) (HK$’000) 2011 2010
EEEF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 346,473 153,918
Hit 2 mEks OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEIEINETS 2 Exchange differences on translation
fEH =% of foreign operations 64,969 15,459
REEHE2E TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
g FOR THE YEAR 411,442 169,377
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAFERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 407,388 168,916
e A T Non-controlling interests 4,054 461
411,442 169,377
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2011

CE#FT) (HK$'000) B1aE Notes 2011 2010
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y - RE L& Property, plant and equipment 15 842,943 773,743
FEfT T E R Prepaid land lease payments 16 45,115 46,004
GES Goodwill 17 94,931 94 931
REE R ZI8E Investments in associates 19 26,074 18,702
RIETHIREE Deferred tax assets 29 78,845 75,289
EBEME  BEK Deposits for purchases of items of

BHEA property, plant and equipment 4,236 19,127
IEMBNVE EMET Total non-current assets 1,092,144 1,027,796
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 20 928,423 672,073
FEWE 5 K EEER Trade and bills receivables 21 778,023 723,432
Al ERFIER Deposits, prepayments and

H b fEUR BR X other receivables 22 90,399 81,489
AL ERRIRE Available-for-sale equity investment 23 - 124,057
EHRIRITER Pledged bank deposits 24 94,044 94,329
RE RRTTET Cash and bank balances 25 849,503 769,862
MENVE EMET Total current assets 2,740,392 2,465,242
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ERE 5 REERER Trade and bills payables 26 530,396 630,539
HAbER BRI Other payables and

fERTaE accruals 27 336,873 282,130
SHRIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 89,669 41,964
JERRIE Tax payable 87,494 53,652
mEN B ERET Total current liabilities 1,044,432 1,008,285
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,695,960 1,456,957
EELERRBAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,788,104 2,484,753
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EEBI AR R Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-T——&=A=+—0 As at 31 March 2011

CEETT) (HK$°000) H1zF Notes 2011 2010

FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

BERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 11,576 6,543

EEFE NET ASSETS 2,776,528 2,478,210

= EQUITY

EATERBFEA Equity attributable to equity holders

PEfhfER of the Company

BEITIAR Issued share capital 30 62,926 62,919

B Reserves 32 2,695,404 2,401,147
2,758,330 2,464,066

R ER Non-controlling interests 18,198 14,144

EREst Total equity 2,776,528 2,478,210

#7E Chen CHIANG F#EEESE Lai Yuen CHIANG
F/E Chairman 7TIECA8%, Chief Executive Officer
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GEEEEERE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T——F=A=+—ALTFE Year ended 31 March 2011
2010
RLABHEEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
REG) Rt &4EE ENgE FER
B BEE fife fife Ex
lssued  Shae  Capitl EAEE EERE -REE Dohnge REER Now &5
fit share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained &5 controlling Total
(B%F1) (HKS000) Notes capitll account  reseve  resee  resee  resene  resene  profits  Total  interests equity
REESNERA-B  AtLApi 2009 62883 506,374 29 5238 117568 231 164532 1432160 2338471 13683 2302104
TEERT Profit for the year - - - - - - - 153500 153500 418 153918
TEREM Other compreensive income
G for the year:
AEE Exchange differences on
£B BN translafion of foreign
EB operations - - - - - - 15416 - 15416 B 1549
TER Totel comprehensive income
Braka for the year - - - - - - 15416 13500 168916 4ol 169377
Bk Issue of new shares K] % 668 - - - - - - 04 - 04
RERHEE Transfer from retained profits - - - u 9039 - - 98 - - -
HEZTINE Final dividend
ZA=+-AL for the year ended
EEIRERE 31 March 2009 - - - - - - - (31442 (3144 - (31442
nERS Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (12583)  (12589) - (12583)
W-F-5&
“A=1t-8 At 31 March 2010 62919 507,042 2000 B2AR0F 126607 23p1F 179948 15323b4F 2464006 14144 2478210
3} ANNUAL REPORT 201 | b5




EEDEERE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-_T——F=A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 March 2011
2011
ARERHFEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
REG) Ry EXEE EigRE F2R
Bx  BEE fife fife Ex
lssued  Shae  Capitl EAEE EERE -REE Dohnge REER Non-  B&#5
fit share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained &5 controlling Total
(E%F1) (HK$000) Notes capital  account  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests  equity
RoE-ZEMA-H  AtLApi 2010 62919 507,042 29 250 126607 2% 108 153234 2464060 14144 2478210
TEERR Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3263 343263 3210 346473
TEREM Other compreensive income
G forthe year:
Ll Exchange diferences on
$BER translation of foreign
EE operations - - - - - - BB - BB 84 6499
KEE Total comprehensive income
araka for the year - - - - - - 641 33263 40738 4064 411442
Bk Issue of new shares 30 7 18 - - - - - - 135 - 135
R Transfer from retained profits - - - 74 1768 - - (178%) - - -
HET-3F Final dividend
ZA=+-AL for the year ended
ERIRERE 31 March 2010 3 - - - - - - - (62919 (62919 - (62919
nERE Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (0340 (50340) - (0340
RE—F
ZA=t-A At 31 March 2011 62926 507,170 2000 B4 144266t 2301 244073 1744526F 2758330 18198 2776528

Y RERERASREAVHINARAZ
iR e B RB2,695,404,0007T (=&

—Z4 : #12,401,147,0007T) °

56
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*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$2,695,404,000 (2010: HK$2,401,147,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2011

(BE¥FT) (HK$'000) K17 Notes 2011 2010
REEKIHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B AT & Profit before tax 421,574 208,696
PR Adjustments for:
B AR Finance costs 8 2,091 1,856
JE(RES R A Share of profits less
S ARUE 18 losses of associates (6,325) (6,137)
FEHA Interest income 7 (7,971) (5,052)
e Depreciation 7 46,925 51,488
JEN T E R R Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 7 1,922 1,832
HEME - BREREE Gain on disposal of items of
NIBA T HER property, plant and equipment and
-l prepaid land lease payments 7 (416) (41,653)
HERMHHEERRE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
2 equity investment 7 (94,040) -
M - R MR Write-off of items of
2 EHH property, plant and equipment 7 2,046 41
SRk A ECH Write-off of aged liabilities 7 (4,651) (500)
FERE, CRERERE) Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
R inventories, net 7 4,813 (22,306)
FEUWE 5 R EEIRNK Impairment of trade and bills
A SR receivables, net 7 16,672 14,374
382,640 202,639
BFERL(38M) Decrease/(increase) in inventories (264,089) 55,667
FEWE 5 R EERFIZI  Increase in trade and bills receivables (64,075) (222,523)
Fld - T FRIAE R EAM Increase in deposits, prepayments
JE U AR FRE B and other receivables (8,224) (15,679)
BB REEERER Increase/(decrease) in trade
#an, Crd) and bills payables (109,405) 358,634
HAb BRI R BT Increase in other payables
=Ee il and accruals 59,579 88,278
WEEL(RH)ZIRE  Cash generated from/(used in) operations (3,574) 467,016
BAFLE Interest paid (2,091) (1,856)
REFEFEH Hong Kong profits tax refunded - 9
BREEFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (8,022) -
R INRIE Overseas taxes refunded 6,012 2,688
BAEINEIA Overseas taxes paid (36,361) (21,213)
BRI ZRERA Net cash flows from/(used in)
Omih) 558 operating activities (44,036) 446,644
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HEEHRERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/

HE_ZT——F=A=1+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2011
CEETT) (HK$’000) H17E Notes 2011 2010
REERZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEWE BB Purchases of items of property, plant
B and equipment 15 (83,751) (68,073)

HEME - BENEE Proceeds from disposal of items of

MIaf L E R property, plant and equipment

Fr8 08 and prepaid land lease payments 2,200 73,403
GEIHEEERIEE Proceeds from return of investment of the

2B PTSIE available-for-sale equity investment 23 124,057 -
HETHNEERRE Proceeds from disposal of the available-for-sale

Fr8 08 equity investment 23 94,040 -
BUFLE Interest received 7,971 5,052
Fi /NI TR L Dividend received from an associate - 2,260
EEME - BEL&HE Decrease/(increase) in deposits for purchases of

IR, () items of property, plant and equipment 14,891 (1,884)
PATF SR R B R B B Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with

mR=EAz original maturity of more than

TR, /(3 m) three months when acquired 58,135 (54,510)
HIRRITIEFORN D (3EAN) Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 4,424 (66,976)

WEEBKzRERAS Net cash flows from/(used in)

() F%8 investing activities 221,967 (110,728)
MEXBECRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BITHARFTS A Proceeds from issue of new shares 30 135 704
HERITER New bank loans 57,102 13,722
BEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (15,801) (11,454)
B S Dividends paid (113,259) (44,025)
MEEFZIREREFE  Net cash flows used in financing activities (71,823) (41,053)
ReRESEEY NET INCREASE IN

ZIBINFER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 106,108 294,863
FHzHE Cash and cash equivalents

&iﬁ ZEY at beginning of year 715,352 418,326

ME R BB 2 B H R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 28,043 2,163
FRZEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RESZEY AT END OF YEAR 849,503 715,352
ReRASEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

LAy CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be MIRTTE Cash and bank balances 25 567,754 535,467
RIEE HTEE%EJ? Him A Bank deposits with original maturity

TR=ZEAZEBREFR of less than three months when acquired 25 281,749 179,885
FERERERMYZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the

RERIBEEED consolidated statement of cash flows 849,503 715,352
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B AR R & Statement of Financial Position

R-ZE——F=A=+—H As at 31 March 2011
CE#FT) (HK$'000) K15+ Notes 2011 2010
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
YE - BB KRB Property, plant and equipment 15 542 640
RBRARZIRE Investments in subsidiaries 18 841,674 672,919
IEMEN B E MG Total non-current assets 842,216 673,559
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
Al K EAth FEUAR R Deposits and other receivables 22 803 725
He RIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 25 50,917 55,825
MENE EMRG Total current assets 51,720 56,550
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HAbER R R Other payables and

JEEtEE accruals 27 27,775 14,753
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 23,945 41,797
EEFE NET ASSETS 866,161 715,356
s EQUITY
BEITIRA Issued share capital 30 62,926 62,919
1 Reserves 32 803,235 652,437
AT Total equity 866,161 715,356

#2Z Chen CHIANG # 5t Lai Yuen CHIANG
£ /& Chairman TTIECABE, Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

1. ARIEHR 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH Investments”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the Company’s immediate
holding company.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

2.1 RBEEE) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation
in full.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest
even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognizes
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Basis of consolidation prior to 1 April 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been applied on
a prospective basis. The following differences, however, are carried
forward in certain instances from the previous basis of consolidation:

e Acquisitions of non-controlling interests (formerly known as
minority interests), prior to 1 April 2010, were accounted for
using the parent entity extension method, whereby the differences
between the consideration and the book value of the share of the
net assets acquired were recognized in goodwill.

e | ossesincurred by the Group were attributed to the non-controlling
interests until the balance was reduced to nil. Any further excess
losses were attributable to the Company, unless the non-controlling
interests had a binding obligation to cover these. Losses prior to 1
April 2010 were not reallocated between non-controlling interests
and the Company’s shareholders.

e Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment
retained at its proportionate share of net asset value at the date
control was lost. The carrying amount of such investment at 1 April
2010 has not been restated.



BA B R R M AL

—F——%#=A=+—A

22 S BERKERS

AEBERAFE 2B HRRAE IR
AT REERTN T BT B ]ME

A -

FEWHRELER :

1 (ERT) BARIRNE BRI
HEER

1 (ERT) BB EEN
F1RERTEX
RAEENTS
HWEEA—-BX
RiE 2 BB AR

F25E (BFT) BB EE
F2RIEFT UK D
X — & B
HEmEZ
LR XI5

F35(EFT) EXBEOf

BAGRTEA

F2THRUER]) HERBIUH
&K

F3I2/UERT) BAEHERFE325
ez A :
2o -HRZ D8

FE3PRUERT) BEEFHERFE39
(BRI T A :
RN aTE —
BEREIPIEA

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards
HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled

Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements
HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues
HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial

Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged
Items
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228 BERKRERE (&) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

BE(EBRGTE  WEEGADIE HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
wEREL HBEEE Owners
8g)-%E:
B175%

BEUESRE BB GRS 2R HKFRS 5 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
ZERIZE55R EOSASRIFF1E included in Assets Held for Sale and
BT (WA HEFEZENEE Improvements to Discontinued Operations —
—EENF REBIFAEE HKFRSs issued Plan to sell the controlling interest
+HAEmZ ®HE—FEHE in October 2008 in a subsidiary

BBHBRE R—ZKH1E 7]
2R Z ) ZER R
ZETNFEE RIZETNF Improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
F IR &R A ABEMmZES HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009
2 M B T 5 2E )
ETEET
BAERESFLR  BEREFEAR HK Interpretation 4 Amendment to HK Interpretation 4
1B5T BiTHE-EF Amendment Leases — Determination of the Length
BB E of Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
A Land Leases
ERRBESR UBEREZEN HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
EAAEEE Classification by the Borrower of a
AJpERF Z K (G2 Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
&5 EHEH on Demand Clause
byl

B PATT Bt 208 B 755 3 5 28 B SB35 (f

&

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS

R REBAGRENFE27HR(ERT) k=
FENFEBUFHREER 2 BERE
BREBEAIR(N_ZEZNF+ A
R BRENEL G ERETRIER]
REBEGFEREITRZEN - KK
AERR] RAER] BB R E AL
BHZEWHRRELEAMBRE -

3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised), amendments to HKAS 7 and HKAS
17 included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 and HK Interpretation
4 (Revised in December 2009), the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

228 BERRESE (&)

PEANE e ] R (S ST B BB S s & The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are

BlzEBHE2IT as follows:
(a) BB REAERNEIF(EET )% (a) HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and HKAS 27

BRREB G EAFE27HR(E
AR S REBEVAIF#HE

BAEMBHREERFEIFR(ERT) 3
AZEEREGANETRIEZE
8 REEYTEITRER Y
it B RPMAZEFTRE - K
ARERDBEBER CEBAMZ
TR L ERFTE - RFEHK
FEOHADEZSR  WEHRL
HAMR 2 S RAA MR R E 48 -

ARG ERFE27R(ERRE
RREZSRZMB AR 2B
BaEPIREa X ARRE -
It ZEBHUHELELE  TT
SEAWSIEIE o Bt 2o 5%
RIERTRATMERTM B ARIEL
BREEEHBARREE N zE
FHRIETTA © BERIREIERT S R Z
AR BEETRNEEGTE
AFTREDRERX BRGFE
RIS12SRA 8 - BAGTREAIE
QUINEEEXE G o E  BER
FHERIFE 8RB E N2 RE K
FREGEREIIRKEELAZ

e o
S o
ary

A EREFTERISI A ZZETIRK
ERRE  YHER T —FFN
A—B®RZWEE - REEGIERIE
ERRESE I R P2 G RIE

(Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that affect the initial
measurement of non-controlling interests, the accounting
for transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes will impact the
amount of goodwill recognized, the reported results in the period

that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for as an
equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact
on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore,
the revised standard changes the accounting for losses incurred
by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
Consequential amendments were made to various standards,
including, but not limited to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
HKAS 12 Income Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates, HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards are applied
prospectively and affect the accounting of acquisitions, loss of
control and transactions with non-controlling interests after 1 April
2010.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

228 BERKERE (&)
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(b) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 sets out

amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments results in changes in accounting policies,
none of these amendments has had a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the key amendments most applicable to
the Group are as follows:

e HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only
expenditures that result in a recognized asset in the statement
of financial position can be classified as a cash flow from
investing activities.

e HKAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific guidance on classifying
land as a lease. As a result, leases of land should be classified
as either operating or finance leases in accordance with the
general guidance in HKAS 17.

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the
Length of Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases is
revised as a consequence of the amendment to HKAS 17 Leases
included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009. Following this
amendment, the scope of HK Interpretation 4 has been expanded
to cover all land leases, including those classified as finance
leases. As a result, this interpretation is applicable to all leases of
property accounted for in accordance with HKAS 16, HKAS 17
and HKAS 40.

The Group has reassessed its leases, previously classified as
operating leases, upon the adoption of the amendments. The
classification of leases remained as operating leases.
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23 EAEREVRNERUBRSE 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

=8

AEEA ERZEWHRERABABIAT
EEMBRARERZ IR RERTEE

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

B ISR 2ER o statements.

AP wEER -

19 (EET) EB IS A HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
F1IREFTEX Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
FRINE B R E Reporting Standards — Limited
2RI — 5t B IR Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
HIRIRE B R Disclosures for First-time Adopters !
EERNET R E
HHREFRY
BREHAE !

19 (EET) EBB IS A HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
F1IREFTBEX Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
FRANE BB FEHR & Reporting Standards — Severe
BRI - B Em AR Hyperinflation and Removal of
REHE B RRAE Fixed Dates for First-time Adoptors 3
mEE HAf 3

FT75R(BE]) SRS YER HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
BT RIEI 2/ Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
TA : #5E—#3g of Financial Assets 3
DHEES

Fo5R LA TAS HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ©

EEesEn

F1255(185])  BHAELFERIFE125% HKAS 12 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome
BRI 38 — Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
BRI - of Underlying Assets *
W EIFEE & E

F2A5(185])  BHEALHEEE 2 HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 2
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23T EHERERNERUBERSE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
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REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments !

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued /Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010, whereas
the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2011 although there are separate transitional
provisions for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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3. FEESTHBERRBE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5] PN

B AR IR AR R B R R AR EHH
MBRELEBER - KMEEEBEHES
MEEZ A7 °

AR 2 FEm D W BB BT A
ARAFZ W RF - RRAIRHTEAE
RE TR ERIEMRESRE

BE QT

BENRERMBRARSN  NEBEES
HEERRE R DR20% 2 KEIE
@ WAHEITEERFENZ AR -

REBFEBE AR 2 B R EE R
BAEDRIBRENRE W R RERE
B - REERBEARIRERERS
FOERTEAS BRI E EFEREAR
B JIAFAFBHIRREK - AEE
EHEBENE 2 HHR 5 PIEERRE
RERA@UASERBERARNKRER
IR LARESH - BRIFREIREIRIRHATE
BEERERERE °

& B ORI B0 SIEHLH
BIAME—FK -

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s investments in
associates are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.
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(continued)
NG Joint ventures

BB NBTIARL LTSI 2 AF] 1R A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
Bz AEEREME T ESEE the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
E 5 A= NCTIVY S AVA/NCI = < venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
i A2 B B H Ath = 5 A B RS o parties have an interest.

BREAZREEINZ A% W% BERE The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
FZEE AEBERE NN SRS capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the
WMEECEE - REGERAEB IR joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realized upon
ELA R TSR EE Z FRIDIK - Eﬂé\% its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
FiIZEZ g 2 3B A BIES S and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
NGRS o either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in

accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

BENRIZIRBEENT A joint venture is treated as:
) HMARRGIEEENTEA B ESE (a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly or
TyZ%jﬁﬁ? HiE - BlaZg Ry indirectly, over the joint venture;
ERMB R REERE

(b) Th$ HAEERAEEFAEZES (b) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or joint

HT HlE - EEEEEES control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than

/\Eﬂﬁ§$$9 R20% - Al $HHE 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
TEERFE S AlaERaiE exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

REE N RIERIR E}Z

(c) IRIBEFBEERIFEIN - MAN (c) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39,
AEEE N TEE&F‘?}“%E,\E if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the
&R DFR20% » I 5 L [F)4% joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of,
FIRER A ITEERTE S - A& nor is in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint
ERAITIERERIIRERR - venture.
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3. FEETHHERBER) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 April 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be
remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations from 1 April 2010 (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergy of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations from 1 April 2010 (continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1 April 2010 but after 1 January 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which are applied
on a prospective basis, the following differences applied to business
combinations prior to 1 April 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase method.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of
the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest was measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as
separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did not affect
previously recognized goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives separated
from the host contract by the acquiree were not reassessed on
acquisition unless the business combination resulted in a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modified the cash flows that
otherwise would have been required under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognized if, and only if, the Group had
a present obligation, the economic outflow was more likely than not
and a reliable estimate was determinable. Subsequent adjustments to
the contingent consideration were recognized as part of goodwill.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

()

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or any of its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
toin (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong — Over the lease terms
Buildings outside Hong Kong - 1510 60 years
Plant, machinery, furniture - 2to1byears

and other equipment
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different

useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include available-for-sale equity
investments, cash and bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade
and bills receivables and other receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortization and the loss arising from impairment are
recognized in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debts
securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets whether the
ability and intention to sell them in the near term are still appropriate.
When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables
is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these
assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the
held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category,
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognized
in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortized cost and the expected cash flows is also amortized
over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinqguency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognized in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has
been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognized in the income statement — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the income statement.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in
other comprehensive income.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case
of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is
included in the income statement.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realizable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provisionis recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognized based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.
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(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
tothe extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “DCRB
Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates
in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee leaves the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB
Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme (the “Central
Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal government.
The contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the Central
Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees, are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Pension schemes (continued)

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined benefits pension
scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make monthly contributions to
the retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and termination
benefits entitlements. The fund is administered by the Employees’
Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited
under the Committee’'s name with a government approved
financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The expected costs
of providing pensions under the Old Scheme are charged to the
income statement over the periods during which the employees
provide the related services to the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan.

In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related pension
scheme by adding a new contributory pension scheme (the “New
Scheme”) in the Labour Pension Act, which became effective on 1
July 2005. According to the amended retirement regulations, the
employees could choose to either select the New Scheme or to
stay with the Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the
New Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation, to the government designated account since the
election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still liable
under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the service
years prior to 1 July 2005.
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The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognized as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognized for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognized for the award is recognized immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of
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equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

AITEBERENE ST E e L FEI The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional

BINEEEAR - sTESRER -

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

BEERA Borrowing costs

BERAREREHNERERERE
e in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the income statement
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to
exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value or such event affecting the asset value has not been
in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test.
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(b) 7EEREEEZHIHE

AREELRTRERIREA BHRS
EEERETHBARMD IR
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myEL HE - NREBERS - HER
AR 2 RIHEFITED K - AIE
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CHENEESES

AEARER T —HRFECEERE
BIRABEAEERAFAE 2 AREZ/RE
KRS AR 2 Hb E BETTRABAEZ
FIERAAT o

(a) BEERIE

AEEELEBEBEERERTR
B HeESERECRSERE
2z = AEEE LG - fAETE
AEEZRASEHKREREE
HEN 2 BRARRR S REEL G
it TEEESETREAEZS
Ben8zRiE - R-T——F=
A=t—8 BEZEAERBE
94,931,000L( =& — 2 4F : B
94,931,0007T) ° ATl Z 718
FHIIRHIRELT

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject
to judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividend. The
Group considered that if the profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes should be provided.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed as
below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
March 2011 was HK$94,931,000 (2010: HK$94,931,000). More
details of the impairment assessment are given in note 17.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Estimation regarding impairment of inventories

(c)

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing analysis
on a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items
with the respective fair value less costs to sell. The purpose is
to ascertain whether impairment is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether impairment needs
to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective inventories
identified.

Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills receivables
is required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification
of objective evidence for potential impairment of debts, the
responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant customers and
report to management on the recoverability. Individual impairment
allowance is only made for those impaired receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.
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5. KEHT|ER 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

REEETBUFREMHETEHNE
FEmM - EEMS - AREREEE
FHaEy S TREBEML - A 1NI=
AR RELEDE

(i) PEAERERE

(i) A& K&

(i) EM/EINEZ -

EEEE I RERAERZEENHZ
B ULBRD B MFRME T EIE
HORTE » D BPRIRIRIBE TR Z R
AN M ET 82 Al s 7 #hE MR AERE
flr e

DEEEHRRBE AR E BT
MIREE MRS MRITETF (RMIRTT
TFRRERIN) - D EBREHBRE BIRITE
A ENTRIAMREERIAERE

ARERLEN M2 BARBEANHE -

The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of plastic
injection moulding machines and related products. For management
purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on the
geographical location of customers and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

(i)  Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(i) Taiwan; and

(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax assets
and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits. Segment
liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.
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—E——fF=A=+—8 31 March 2011
5. REHHER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
TREHNEZZZE—FN T —ZFTF The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets, liabilities
AT HLEFEAREEKEDEH 2 and expenditure information for the Group’s operating segments for the
W EE - ETEE BENMAXZE years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.
#} o
R"EIIEFH
2 ER U R PERHEE
Segment revenue Segment results
from external customers
REE Group
(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010 2011 2010
AR BKRE K BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,752,252 1,359,483 305,925 206,625
B Taiwan 148,115 108,624 15,356 10,419
E /N R Other overseas countries 523,161 338,227 46,569 21,061
2,423,528 1,806,334 367,850 238,105

e IMEENR Reconciliation of results of

BREE AT R operating segments

O - to profit before tax is as follows:
BN IR Operating segment results 367,850 238,105
KD WA R = Unallocated income and gains 102,011 5,052
ERAES T Corporate and unallocated expenses (52,521) (38,742)
RE A Finance costs (2,091) (1,856)
JE(REE N A Share of profits less losses

s F R B 18 of associates 6,325 6,137
BRI A Profit before tax 421,574 208,696
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—E——%F=A=+—H 31 March 2011
5. REHWBER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEPEE TEEE
Segment assets Segment liabilities

REE Group
CEMTFT) (HK$°000) 2011 2010 2011 2010
FR R B K Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,523,774 2,333,377 680,056 733,989
A& Taiwan 111,445 112,520 57,341 65,646
EBINER Other overseas countries 242,895 183,288 129,872 113,034

2,878,114 2,629,185 867,269 912,669
RSN 24 Investments in associates 26,074 18,702 - -
R EE Unallocated assets 928,348 845,151 - -
RN AR Unallocated liabilities - - 188,739 102,159

3,832,536 3,493,038 1,056,008 1,014,828

B HEs
Other segment information
EREEENR/ (BB
HEFR
TEREH RtFBESTH /(KA Impairment losses EXEY
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged/(reversed) in the Capital
amortization expenses/(income) income statement expenditure

yis-3c| Group
(B%F1) (HK$000) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
PEARRER Mainland China and Hong Kong 46,042 4743% (2892 (42080) 21337 (12144) 82,025 65481
8 Taiwan 874 1,1% 3 10 (364) 55 235 774
EtgiER Other overseas countries 1931 4760 (132) (42) 512 4157 1,491 1818

48847 5330  (3,021) (42112 21,485 (7932) 83751 68073
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—ET——F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2011
5. R&ENHFER (&) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
FkRBEE
Non-current assets
AEH Group
(BMFor) (HK$°000) 2011 2010
HRBKRE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 877,783 829,769
BE Taiwan 109,442 104,036
987,225 933,805

bt 7 IR BEB R VR EENEM The non-current asset information above is based on the location
ERiRREE AR 288 RIRER IR E of assets and excludes investments in associates and deferred tax
E:tE - assets.

6. W= 6. REVENUE
W (IMARER 2 SXEEEIEFRNZHE Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced
BRERE O BEEENESWM M value of goods sold during the year, after allowances for returns and
TEIEEERRMZRS ° trade discounts, excluding intra-group transactions.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

AKBE BRSNS GIAT

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

&8 -

GEMTT) (HK$'000) B17E Notes 2011 2010
EHFERA Cost of inventories sold 1,778,291 1,355,571
e Depreciation 15 46,925 51,488
B LM B R 2 TR Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 16 1,922 1,832
HEWE - BEMEE Gain on disposal of items of

NIB i FHE R property, plant and equipment and

2 A prepaid land lease payments* (416) (41,653)
HEITHNEERRE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

i equity investment* 23 (94,040) -
W - R NREE Write-off of items of

ik property, plant and equipment* 15 2,046 41
BT RIEFEE Minimum lease payments under operating

MET 2 &EMRES H leases of leasehold land and buildings 5,316 5,691
M RABEER Research and development costs*** 29,452 18,669
A Gl Auditors’ remuneration 1,850 1,769
BIT@RAZE(EEHe Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BRoN— B 5E9) directors’ emoluments — note 9):

T & K E Wages and salaries 208,292 172,408

RN FHEMER Pension scheme contributions 14,009 12,481
EWE 5 R EEER Impairment of trade and bills

TR RE receivables, net*** 21 16,672 14,374
HFERE/CRERD) Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

HER of inventories, net** 4,813 (22,306)
PE H 2= B F R~ Foreign exchange differences, net*** (35,835) 562
A EUTA* Interest income* (7,971) (5,052)
mIRRBE ZFTEY Write-off of aged liabilities* (4,651) (500)

* RFHRECERREaRERZIEM *

WA Rz S50 A -

the consolidated income statement.

These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the face of

* ZBEEEERERERGRAKRZRZIEER **  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

ENI

o RFBRBCERREARER 2 EAM

EEXHFREIN -

income statement.

the consolidated income statement.

*** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face of
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

8. EEKA 8. FINANCE COSTS
REE Group
(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
RAEFARZEHEEZ Interest on bank loans
IRITERF B wholly repayable within five years 2,091 1,856

9. EEH<E

KREBBAERSMER A (B
A DRES R A REE R RERAIS
16116 - FREFMHEWELT -

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Directors’ emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the Hong

AEEH Group
CE¥FT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
e Fees:
WITES Executive directors - -
BN IERITES Independent non-executive directors 690 690
HAb S - Other emoluments:
e - R R B Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 11,124 9,283
FRIREMATELL Performance related bonuses 21,984 7,741
RIS FT B Pension scheme contributions 48 48
33,846 17,762

BEEE - ETESRRRBHT A%
B AR AR 2 R OB AR A B 1R T 8
BRIE - A RTINS R 2 B i
31 HEBBENATFERBBHE
W R PR - KA TFEARS A
o
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In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options which had been recognized
in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant.
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—E——%F=A=+—H 31 March 2011
9. EEMe (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) BAFEHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FR - I FEILIERTESNE The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
W : year were as follows:
REE Group
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
PR B2 ¢ 5T A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 150 150
Anish LALVANI4c 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 195 195
R B AL Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 180 180
T EqhE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 165 165
690 690
FRN - WRAMMES SN TELIE There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
WTER(ZE—ZTF E|E) - executive directors during the year (2010: Nil).
(b) HITESE (b) Executive directors
2011
E0 N
EER
ENFR 3] Bikd
Salaries, BT HEMR
allowances Performance Pension x5y
£  and benefits related scheme Total
(B%FT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions emoluments
EEET Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4127 7,701 - 11,828
EBat Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,481 7538 12 10,031
BEegs Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,848 5,157 12 7,017
BUR S Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,534 910 12 2,456
REELAE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 678 12 1,824
- 11,124 21,984 48 33,156
&4 ANNUALReporT 2011 105
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(b) BITEE(E)

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

2010
M
BER
BNRE 53] Bhe
Salaries, — HMATEAL GBI
allowances Performance Pension Memit
#2  and benefits related scheme Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions  emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 3,253 2,712 - 5,965
BEHXT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 1975 2,611 12 4,598
BE2ak Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,659 1,750 12 3421
EYRTE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1377 374 12 1,763
REERE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,019 294 12 1,325
- 9,283 7,741 43 17,072

ER-_ZTT)\FE 2XRERERY
2 RYTEFARRBERRE - B
BT RSB LRERF 0% -
BEBELE  BURAERREESLE
WMEARFHI20% - 2HH_FTT/N\F+
“A-REREN  BEEAEEXRKIE
FHITESERABENRREAL - AR
EREERIGEN SRR PES
MAKE 2 2ETERRTE - AT
EXZFAERERRERTHMEENR
10%  WH_-_ZE—FTF=H—HE4E
Mo BATESFRREER ITES
Z ERH BN [T 18 =6 B AR TS ek P R
ZRBNKF -
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Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami in late 2008,
the executive directors had voluntarily agreed to effect a temporary
reduction of 30% of basic remuneration in the cases of Dr. Chen CHIANG
and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and 20% of basic remuneration in the cases
of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG and Mr. Sam
Hon Wah NG, all with effect from 1 December 2008 until the business
of the Group recovers and when the executive directors consider
appropriate. In view of the global economy started and continued to
recover from the financial tsunami and the business operation of the
Group had become stable, all the executive directors had agreed to
change the rate of temporary reduction of their basic remuneration
to 10% with effect from 1 March 2010. The basic remuneration of
the executive directors would be resumed to the original levels as
contained in their service agreements when the executive directors
consider appropriate.



BA B R R M AL

—T——#=A=+-H
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9. EEME(H) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
FR WEEAMAARABESTEERR During the year, no share option was exercised by any director of the
1 o Company.
TR REEWEETESHE ASE During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
EHRHIMAREESEAIMARNERR 2 directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
BN - SKBERRES(E o compensation for loss of office.
10. EEEREME2EE 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FHN - IZESEEMNEe 2 EERERS The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2010:
(ZZ—ZTF : AR)EF  EfleH five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9 to the
PR BTSRRI L © financial statements.
11. FrEHi < 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
REBFABBERED ZERTRA Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
W BEBNERIZIE% (ZE—F 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
F 0 16.5%)FHR/ELBE - Hibih 2 the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
2o FIFR TR B AN 5 (B 48 i SE RS P E B at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the
R/ ALEER 2 RITRERAE - Group operates.
AEEH Group
CE#EFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
BIEA - Current:
REFRIASL H Charge for the year
&5 Hong Kong 11 8,056
E b2 Elsewhere 69,761 33,871
BAFEDIR(ZR)EE  Under/(Over) provision in prior years (1,037) 16,792
RIE — 17329 Deferred — note 29 6,366 (3,941)
AEERIAZ M Tax charge for the year 75,101 54,778
&35 ANNUALReporT 2011 107
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FABRBATE R B AR A A 7 R B
NEIFMEER Bl EE R 2 R E Rt
(B ERI2NZE25%) 2 B H -
ER BB ERTE MBS L2 A
W

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 25%, for the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

REE Group
(CEMFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
BRI A Profit before tax 421,574 208,696
AR R E 2 FIA Tax at the statutory tax rates 75,575 43,707
ERIE 1 R 7 et Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

2RISR, ER R R specific provinces and local authority (27,342) (20,284)
B R E B B YIRLER 1A Effect on opening deferred tax

R of changes in rates - 375
REBPFEARIERM Effect of tax on the equity transfer of

([HFE)IEE 2 Bt the People’s Republic of China

HEERNTIA Y (the “PRC") investment of the Group 9,474 -
RAHOFLZ Expenses not deductible for tax 22,880 17,031
BAGMTIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (9,819) (9,793)
KERZ ANFERIBER Tax losses for the year not recognized 6,283 6,950
= AT BT I ES1E Tax losses from previous periods utilized (913) -
B EHRRE BN ERRL 18 Adjustments in respect of current tax of

LA previous periods (1,037) 16,792
AEERHIES H Tax charge for the year 75,101 54,778

REBE TR BEAREL S ZHBLRR]
RINEREDRE  ZEHBARZEM
EREMNEEFEERCBNTEMREG
B MRERZ =ZFRERR50% 2+
BIFT1S AL
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Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises and are exempted from the income
tax of the PRC for two years starting from the first profitable year of
operations, and are entitled to a 50% relief from the income tax of the
PRC for the following three years.
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GBI (&)

R-ZEZLF=A+T A 2BARRK
KA BBTECRAETA(FHEE
FRBOE]D) REBHRER —ETLF+ =
ARNBREMGHIERAR - B =TTN
F—A—BBER - RIBFERAEH
o R RINERENAEREE T
FNF—A— B8 —R25% ° R
R RAEPRABM AR L ZA
MERAB SR TR B E R ERM DR
M5 - MEEAEHREHEFEEMS
BER —ZETN\F—A—BERZER
FRHEEREZHIEE25% B Al
BREN—BRE R RESREMSHE
HRegRenhs  ATREZAZART
B BEEZREEHRERAL -

RO TEERFTEABEEF

HE-_Z——F=A=+—HILFE
ARBEmRFEE ARGZEA RN T E
ERARBMBRRC AN G E
#263,929,0007t( =& — T F : B
60,613,0007T ) (M§3£32) °

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The National People’s Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax
(“CIT”) Law of the PRC (the “New CIT Law”) on 16 March 2007 and the
State Council announced the Detail Implementation Regulations on 6
December 2007, which was effective from 1 January 2008. According
to the New CIT Law, the income tax rates for both domestic and foreign
investment enterprises have been unified at 25% effective from 1
January 2008. However, for enterprises which were established before
the publication of the New CIT Law and were entitled to preferential
treatments of reduced CIT tax rate granted by relevant tax authorities,
the new CIT rate will gradually be increased from the preferential rate
to 25% within five years after the effective date of the New CIT Law on
1 January 2008. Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemptions
from or reductions in the standard income tax rate for a fixed term may
continue to enjoy such treatment until the fixed term expires.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2011 includes a profit of HK$263,929,000
(2010: HK$60,613,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 32).
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13. k& 13. DIVIDENDS

CEBTT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
HHARR SR E AR Interim dividend of HK$0.08

BEE0.08 L (ZE—F4F ¢ (2010: HK$0.02) per ordinary share

B#0.027T) 50,335 12,583
RN T mESE Additional interim dividend

2 NP EAAR B due to exercise of share options 5 -
BEAIREERE B Proposed final dividend of HK$0.19

B0 19 (ZE—FF - (2010: HK$0.10) per ordinary share

7#0.107T) 119,559 62,919

169,899 75,502

KA [T 2 KRR B RS AR A AR
RN 2 R A A T ]
1 -

14. X ARBHFAEARBESRER

BRERBNTIRIEF AR R REDR
B AR R & B M| 78 #343,263,000
T Z & — T % % 153,500,000
TI)RFRAEBRTEBER Z NE
F1980629,211,447( =T —F 5 :
629,018,608 )5t & Fr1F

BREERFIIRBEFAARR RS
B A BRI 343,263,000
(=T —ZF : #¥153,500,0007T)
R @R 2 D 15 £1629,802,582 %
—ZT—T4F 1 629,194, 7870% ) (BNETE
BREABFANMAFADEITERR
2 DNAE 15 629,211 4478 ( —Z —
T4 1 629,018,6080% ) M B &% F A &
BT BRED 2 T H N EMET
{2 3 i AR hn A 719 2591,135/% (=
BT 176,1790%) )T EFAE -
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14.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year of HK$343,263,000 (2010: HK$153,500,000) and on
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 629,211,447
(2010: 629,018,608) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
year of HK$343,263,000 (2010: HK$153,500,000) and on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 629,802,582 (2010:
629,194,787), being the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 629,211,447 (2010: 629,018,608) in issue during the year as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 591,135 (2010: 176,179) assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all
share options outstanding during the year.
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—T——#=A=+—A 31 March 2011
15. 9% - BERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
—E——%=A=+—H” 31 March 2011
KAE#L
kEF R B
HERT e B
Freehold REMRE
land and Plant,
buildings, EEIR machinery,
AEE Group and leasehold  Construction  furniture and @t
(EEFT) (HK$'000) buildings in progress other equipment Total
R-E-SFNA—H At 1 April 2010
AR Cost 530,948 159,960 847537 1,538,445
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (147,661) - (617,041) (764,702)
FETE Net carrying amount 383,287 159,960 230,496 773,743
RZE-T4HMA-H " At 1 April 2010, net of
ENREAIE accumulated depreciation 383,287 159,960 230,496 773,743
NE Additions 2,930 65,079 15,742 83,751
HE Disposals - - (1,784) (1,784)
F8H Write-offs - - (2,046) (2,046)
B Transfers 189,815 (218,564) 28,749 -
EE Depreciation provided
WERE during the year (14,692) - (32,233) (46,925)
[ER AR Exchange realignment 19,125 7,095 9,984 36,204
W_E——%=ZA=+—-8" At 31 March 2011, net of
ENREAIE accumulated depreciation 580,465 13,570 248908 842943
RZE——F=ZA=1—H At 31 March 2011
R Cost 749,097 13,570 905,012 1,667,679
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (168,632) - (656,104) (824.736)
FEFE Net carrying amount 580,465 13,570 248908 842,943
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15. 9% - BERRE &) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

—T-TF=A=1+—H

31 March 2010

KAERELH
kBT R BE
HERF BEE - B
Freehold REMRE
land and Plant,
buildings, REIR machinery,
AEE Group and leasehold  Construction  furniture and @5
(ERFT) (HK$000) buildings in progress other equipment Total
RZEENFNA—-A At 1 April 2009
YA Cost 591,535 114,798 827,521 1,533,854
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (177,076) - (585,036) (762,112)
FERE Net carrying amount 414,459 114,798 242 485 771,742
RZETNFEA-A - At 1 April 2009, net of
EMREETE accumulated depreciation 414,459 114,798 242,485 771,742
NE Additions 125 56,810 11,138 68,073
HE Disposals (23,088) - (408) (23,496)
B Write-offs - - (41) (41)
B Transfers - (12,176) 12,176 -
KEE Depreciation provided
ERE during the year (15,136) - (36,352) (51,488)
fEH AR Exchange realignment 6,927 528 1,498 8953
RZE-Z2F=A=+-H" At 31 March 2010, net of
BB EHTE accumulated depreciation 383,287 159,960 230,496 773,743
R-E-ZF=A=1+—-H At 31 March 2010
AR Cost 530,948 159,960 847,537 1,538,445
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation (147,661) - (617,041) (764,702)
FEFE Net carrying amount 383,287 159,960 230,496 773,743
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—Z=——F=A=+—¢H 31 March 2011
15. 9% ~ BENRE(E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
REBZEBRTIRUREBAIMNDE The Group’s construction in progress was situated outside Hong Kong
WA ERR A5 A - and was held under medium term leases.
BIER LR EETIEE KA ERE M The Group’s freehold land and buildings and leasehold buildings
FiEF  RHEEFZHTHT : included above are analyzed as follows:
REE Group
(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
B HROET Leasehold buildings held under:
EEBZ PN Medium term leases in Hong Kong 12,107 12,563
EEBLAIMEE 2 P EIFA) Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 471,629 279,955
483,736 292,518
EBEBAIMEE 2 Freehold land and buildings
KAERE T RIETF held outside Hong Kong 96,729 90,769
580,465 383,287
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—ET——F=A=+—H 31 March 2011
15. 4% - BERRE(E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
ERMREMRE
KAFE] Company Furniture and
(E#For) (HK$'000) other equipment
—E——F=A=+—H 31 March 2011
RZZE-ZTFWMA—H - At 1 April 2010,

EHBRRFTE net of accumulated depreciation 640
REZIFERE Depreciation provided during the year (98)
RZT——F=A=+—8H" At 31 March 2011,

EHBRRFTE net of accumulated depreciation 542
WZZE——F=A=+—H At 31 March 2011

BN Cost 5,345

2T E Accumulated depreciation (4,803)
EREVFE Net carrying amount 542
—_E-ETF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2010
RZZEZNFWMA—H - At 1 April 2009,

EHBRRFHE net of accumulated depreciation 738
RERIERE Depreciation provided during the year (98)
RZT—ZTF=A=+—QH" At 31 March 2010,

EHBRRFE net of accumulated depreciation 640
WZZE-TF=A=+—H At 31 March 2010

B9 Cost 6,972

Z2iHTE Accumulated depreciation (6,332)
EREVFE Net carrying amount 640
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

REE Group
GEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
A A—BMEREE Carrying amount at 1 April 47,644 57,631
k= Disposals - (8,254)
REEHER Recognized during the year (1,922) (1,832)
bE R R Exchange realignment 1,370 99
A= A=+—HKNERAEE Carrying amount at 31 March 47,092 47 644

mENER D B IR Current portion included in

A& BERIER deposits, prepayments and

H U R 5k other receivables (1,977) (1,640)
IEmBNE S Non-current portion 45,115 46,004
RNEBF FMpEHAEM T AER The Group’s prepaid land lease payments included above are analyzed
AT ¢ as follows:
AEEH Group
CE¥TT) (HK$°000) 2011 2010
FiiEAMTEN T HER Prepaid land lease payments held under:

TEEE 2 R ERERA Medium term leases in Hong Kong 14,753 15,149

EEBAINEE Z RHIRE) Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 32,339 32,495

47,092 47,644
17. 58 17. GOODWILL
AEE Group
GEETT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
[EES Goodwill 94,931 94 931
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

17. GOODWILL (continued)

AERE

HEKEHEECHEEDETETH
BRAREITRENR - ZEWEBARZ
el EENIREEREB A EE
T RTEMANBRSREEAN AT
BTEE AERN - WEFERAEEHENEZE
REPEEHIERERITIRE o BIHTE
EMFIERM TERARBEFENE
0 RERNEH - ReMETEAFTA
MITREEHLIL% (ZFE—FF 1 9%)
(Fian) - ARB IR B AR 2 e
% o X BT Z EEENINBETE
1SHVERMER -

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to certain subsidiaries for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the subsidiaries has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation include the expected growth rate and discount rate.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting actual and prior year
performance and development expectations. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 11% (2010: 9%) which is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The values
assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external information
sources.

18. R AR 2 IRE

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AAHE Company

(BEEFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010

LT - RERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370

FEUHT B A BIBR KRR Due from subsidiaries, net 1,302,827 1,286,149

FERTB B A RIBRR Due to subsidiaries (633,523) (785,600)
841,674 672,919

P ) 2 AR R EREE A AR K A ]
FEEFIER - AT B QR ZRAER
BRI TS M RYEA S, o [
J& 2 B2 BRERERER T 2R B B R )
E2ERENER - AATESNRE
HAR+ - EARERINZESHE -

RZEBE——F=A=+—0 " stEW
=T H B AR R FGEHE R E R A LB
#69,500,000L( ZFE — T F : K
65,000,0007T) °
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The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The balances with certain subsidiaries bear interest
at prevailing market rates. As the balances with subsidiaries arose
from advances to/from the subsidiaries for the purpose of operational
financing, the Company does not intend to demand settlement of the
amounts involved within 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 March 2011, there was an impairment of HK$69,500,000
(2010: HK$65,000,000) made on amounts due from certain
subsidiaries.
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18. R B AT 2R E (&)

FR - BEKE THEBRRERRER
BB B 4,500,000t —F —FF ¢
75%10,800,0007T) « EAKREEAB
#219,044,0007C( — 2 — T F : B
212,527,00070) - BEBRED Z B %
EMBERARICEEFE -

ITZMBRAZHBHINRNEL46E
1518A -

19. RIBERNR 2 RE

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

During the year, impairment losses of HK$4,500,000 (2010:
HK$10,800,000) were recognized for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries, with a total gross carrying amount of HK$219,044,000
(2010: HK$212,527,000). The impairment provision had taken into
account the net asset values of the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 146 to
151.

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

REE Group
CE#¥FT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
EREEFE Share of net assets 26,074 18,702

FEATBR & N R 2 BRR R SE 5 1ER -
B - R N—RR=TRAZN -
st R=F——F=A=+—8"
BRK-BERABERN( T -FF:
78 #45,0007T ) & FE 1+ Bk i 2 B BR X
715,209,000t ( —F —FF : B
9,647,0007T) B 7 AlRE AFEIE 5 K 5=
BRFRENE S REERRA - D5l
R R KM 21 K268 5 -

FTE RS2 B 2 Bt X R)39 AR o B A
RN BIARERE 2 RFEA o

The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and normally settled on a term of 30 days. Accordingly,
as at 31 March 2011, no amount due from an associate (2010:
HK$45,000) and the amounts due to associates of HK$15,209,000
(2010: HK$9,647,000) are included in the trade and bills receivables
and the trade and bills payables, as disclosed in notes 21 and 26 to the
financial statements, respectively.

All of the Group'’s associates are corporate entities registered in the
PRC and operating in Mainland China.
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—ZTZ—F=A=+—H 31 March 2011
19. Rt E AR 2 RE (#&) 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Bt N E 2 A AR T Particulars of the associates are as follows:
AEEENG
ERTRAEE EEEo
BRER Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FTEEK
£ issued share/ attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital to the Group activities
B8 LU T = T S A R % 711,520,0007T 25 SlENIHE
AR UsS$1,520,000 REBBEESD
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. of iron casting products
8L T BT B T AR %7800,0007T 25 BICERE)
BEBRAA US$800,000 Dormant
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery
Company, Limited ©
it - Notes:
(1) ERARERBEBL RGBSR (1) The above companies are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
S I E S nE] SRS R A= /N another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
R ©
2) FATIA=A=+—BAHEBEAH (2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to conform with
UREFAHIZERATIZHRERE - their holding company'’s reporting date.
(3) HEXATZTEEMET - (3) English company name is translated for identification purpose only.
TEREFYANEFE SN T 2T EERS The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of
THEAREEEBRE the Group’s associates extracted from their management accounts:
(EBFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
BE Assets 169,781 132,338
Al Liabilities (62,552) (55,937)
Wz Revenues 167,866 117,854
il Profit 26,640 26,138
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20. 78 20. INVENTORIES
NEE Group
(BMFor) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
G Raw materials 293,518 235,460
R m Work in progress 262,768 219,258
SBIRK on Finished goods 372,137 217,355
928,423 672,073

21. BRE S REER™ 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

TEE Group

CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010

BUE 5 N EEERR Trade and bills receivables 868,807 799,348

EE Impairment (90,784) (75,916)
778,023 723,432

BEFZ2BRGR—RABRERS ~ iRTT

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank bills or

RBELERNE - AREREERNZP
ZEFRENREBRMEEE  FHE
EMB/NTR BETARIRSME
Rz &P - BIEREEEN - K&
[ SR B BB R R 22 15 Rk e B (KB
K BREERBEERE - NEEL
B SRR A RIS A M 9
ERZ P -

AR DB EARENEKE S R
SERKAREDBEPATAEK - 808
BEANEREERR - ZERKRES
R EFRFILTHFE

on credit. Customers are granted credit at the discretion of the Group,
subject to their respective business strength and creditability. The
average credit period is 90 days and extension of credit period is made
for customers with good trading and repayment records. The Group
adopts strict control policies over credit terms and receivables that
serve to minimize credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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—ET——F=A=+—H 31 March 2011
21. EREBE ZREBRR(E) 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
BWE S REERICNEREZE S0 The movements in impairment allowance for trade and bills receivables
T~ are as follows:
KEE Group
(CEMFIT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
KREA—H At 1 April 75,916 62,455
BRI ER IR Impairment losses charged
VPRI SESVE S to the income statement, net 16,672 14,374
T RE B R SRR Amounts written off as uncollectible (5,145) (1,224)
FE 5 R B Exchange realignment 3,341 311
W=A=+—AH At 31 March 90,784 75,916
E i EWE 5 R EEIRFUR B EET Included in the above impairment allowance for trade and bills
BREEEERIRERENERE ZIRHR receivables is an allowance for individually impaired trade receivables
7S #77,306,00070( —ZF —F4F : B of HK$77,306,000 (2010: HK$64,390,000) with a gross carrying
64,390,0007T) * ERE#HER 2 BRE A amount before provision of HK$79,173,000 (2010: HK$69,772,000).
AB#79,173,0000( —E—Z4F : B The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to customers
#69,772,0007T) - E/EERIRE R that were in default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
ZEWE 5 REBRERFSEF B RS and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
2 HR R TEAA R AT AR B R 5 FE U AR SR 2
BPF o
W ARERENERE S NEBIRR The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based on the
BYMEIEEFTE BRI T ¢ payment due date, that are not considered to be impaired is as
follows:
EE Group
(CEMFIT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
REVER (I AR @ HASORE) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 552,996 526,796
BERDR TR Less than 90 days past due 98,745 132,893
BN —Z2—Aa/N\t+X 91 to 180 days past due 39,155 20,662
wmHBA—/_ANt+X Over 180 days past due 87,127 43,081

778,023 723,432
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21. BRES REBRR(E) 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

W AR BRI E < FEMGR IS KA R
BN ZER

EA B BRI E 2 YRR B A
TEAKRBERFRXZHTHENBILE
AREEERTEEAEY - A%SHE
SIDBR AR 2 EURE - EAR B R
FERRPE IR E R -

RZEBE—ZF=A=1+—H EKES
REBREREPRERK—EE A2
SKIA BB HA45,0000T + E A RS ER
AEEHMFBZRFEEA -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2010, included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables
was an amount due from an associate of HK$45,000 which is repayable
on similar credit terms to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

22. 5% > ANFER M EIERRR 22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
REE RAF
Group Company
CEETFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010 2011 2010
HEASEENE Deposits and prepayments 48,785 46,778 417 417
FER T FER Prepaid land lease payments,
TRENER D current portion 1,977 1,640 - -
E b EURBR SR Other receivables 39,637 33,071 386 308
90,399 81,489 803 725

ZEEEMEANNRE - BHTHE
BB B MO BB I SRAC 8 2 PR UL

None of these assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in these balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.
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23. At HHEERIKRE 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENT

REE Group
(E#EFT) (HK$°000) 2011 2010

JELETIRE K AE Unlisted investment, at cost - 124,057

FEMAIHEERRRE SHERER
REARE—RERT] e

The unlisted available-for-sale equity investment represents an indirect
interest in a joint venture company in Mainland China.

RNR-_E—ZTF=A=+—H'%ZR As at 31 March 2010, the unlisted equity investment in Mainland

PEAREZIEEMESRERKAR
HIBR - E BR M B & B #124,057,000
Lo TR ALEEEBSEERER
75 #5124,057,0007T © H #% T &% & K
KEBE2IT W RZT—TF
P9 A + 75 B » Chen Hsong Marketing
International Limited (A2 & —fE#E 2
BHBAR)REHIEE(ARRIZHEE
ERARNITI—mE([BE]) - B8
—RRRBI AR IE TSR E(THE
£I5]) - REAE94,740,0007T + &
RZE—ZFNA T BERETER
KAERZR G2 AE - AEBRETESE
BR15— IR MU ER B 8594,040,0007T + 1E
ToiRIER(EAE94,740,0007T - $HER
Mz REEBE2IT(EERREEK
7 124,057,0007C 70 B 78 T 37 1 o
AZINEHFE) URBEHEEERY
HMp A RFAZMErE o

China with a carrying amount of HK$124,057,000 was stated at
cost. During the year, the Group received a return of investment of
HK$124,057,000 leaving the investment cost at HK$2. After that,
on 16 April 2010, Chen Hsong Marketing International Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement (the “Agreement”) with CH Investments, the immediate
holding company of the Company, to dispose of the unlisted equity
investment in Mainland China (the “Disposal”), for a consideration
of HK$94,740,000, as disclosed in the announcement regarding the
discloseable and connected transaction dated 16 April 2010. The
Group recorded a one-off gain of HK$94,040,000 from the Disposal
as calculated by reference to the consideration of HK$94,740,000,
the carrying amount of the sale shares of HK$2 (representing the
original cost of investment of HK$124,057,000 net of the return of
investment before the entering into of the Agreement) and other costs
and expenses in connection with the Disposal.

24 KRB ITER 24.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
REE Group
(BEFor) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
EIRIRITIE N Pledged bank deposits 94,044 94,329
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—E——&=A=+—8 31 March 2011

24 ERBITERE) 24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
ZEFREETRP B RELE ZH The balance included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries
|B ~ 7 BT R A B 57,977,000 ( = operating in Mainland China of HK$57,977,000 (2010: HK$32,524,000)
T — T F: H 32 524,000 ) KB and HK$36,067,000 (2010: HK$61,805,000) for securing certain loans
#36,067,000T( — & —ZF : FHE granted by certain financial institutions in Mainland China to third parties
61,805,0007T) 2 IRITIFH - 5 5l and for securing bank acceptance notes, included in the trade and bills
FREERF BIRRES TS HELS T 5 payables, to suppliers, respectively.

=FENER R BERREG THERNR
THEGESR  ZFEFLARNE SN
RERRA -

25. BERBITHET 25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES
rEE KA
Group Company
(BT IT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Be RIRTTHEF Cash and bank balances 567,754 535,467 45,130 5,825
R IF RS EE AR Bank deposits with
JRERW A original maturity of
TR=EA less than three months
ZEBREFEHR when acquired 281,749 179,885 5,787 50,000
Rek Cash and
HeFEY cash equivalents 849,503 715,352 50,917 55,825
R IF RS EE AR Bank deposits with
JRERW A original maturity of
A=A more than three months
2 TE BT when acquired - 54,510 - -
1818 & MIRITHETF Total cash and bank balances 849,503 769,862 50,917 55,825
Wat . BROTGEZFARTERFEZZHA Note: ~ Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
RREFE - BT AEBMRENTE deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
Sk MESNH—RKEAMEATER between one day and six months depending on the immediate cash
TEHFR - WIATE B8 R RER requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
B o SRI1THEF LRI RITFERTF deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged bank deposits are
PRI ST ERE X040 8k 2 B2 2R deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
10
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26. ENE S REBRX

S CEHEST GEEYES e
(ISR TS 2 R I -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

REE Group

CEBTT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010

REHA Current 434,078 537,756

—ZENTK 1 to 90 days 75,485 72,701

N+—RK=—EBN+X 91 to 180 days 3,294 3,002

Be—aNt+Xx Over 180 days 17,539 17,080
530,396 630,539

FEINE 5 R ERARRIAL AR o FEAY
B LEBERFE T BEENBE AT
FRIEB 15,209,000 T( —E—F4F -
78%9,647,0007T) - ENRIGERB=1
RAXN - &R RS R B R TH
TEEPHNERFAEL -

27 Hit R R R FERH B &

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Included in the
trade and bills payables are trade payables of HK$15,209,000 (2010:
HK$9,647,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30 days,
which represent similar credit terms to those offered by the associates
to their major customers.

27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

REE PN
Group Company
CEBTFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010 2011 2010
BUEET & Deposits received 108,651 83,055 48 46
EETEEN Accruals and
HEmEE other liabilities 228,222 199,075 27,727 14,707
336,873 282,130 27,775 14,753

FRARMENER R ETRENERE
B AR o
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28. ;T ERITER 28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

BERAE
Effective
REE Group interest rate B HA
CE#EFT) (HK$°000) (%) Maturity 2011 2010
RITEREERH Bank loans repayable
—FR within one year 1.2 (2010: 1.2) 2011 89,669 41,964
REBE 2 BmBERBITERAZEF X The Group’s unsecured bank loans are at floating rates.
ATE o
29. RIEFIE 29. DEFERRED TAX

FR - REHARBEREEZSHNT

are as follows:

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

EEBIEAE Deferred tax liabilities
WER&ERR
HEAIE
Depreciation
allowance in Eilke)
rEE Group excess of related %  BiEEIE Withholding st
(BT IT) (HK$°000) depreciation Provisions Tax losses tax Total
RZZEZNFMNA—H At 1 April 2009 2,421 (283) (888) 10,919 12,169
AEERUEE R Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FTA) ZIRIER B to the income statement
SFR(MEELLD during the year, net (note 11) (2,421) 590 888 (2,273) (3,216)
MEBARFAR Withholding tax on
FHE 2 HEH repatriation of earnings
from subsidiaries - - - (3,176) (3,176)
i A% Exchange realignment - (178) - 944 766
R-ZE—TF At 31 March 2010 and
ZA=+—8k 1 April 2010
—Z-ZTFMA—H - 129 - 6,414 6,543
REE R IRER NG Deferred tax charged
ZIEERIIE to the income statement
SFRA(KIEELL) during the year, net (note 11) - 107 - 6,512 6,619
MEBARFAR Withholding tax on
AINE i G repatriation of earnings
from subsidiaries - - - (2,099) (2,099)
b Exchange realignment - (178) - 691 513
RZT——%F Gross deferred tax
—A=+—H liabilities recognized in the
RN A AR E consolidated statement of
EXEHBEAGBEE financial position at 31 March 2011 - 58 - 11,518 11,576
3 ANNUALREPORT 2011 12D
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29 FEIERITE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EEBEEE Deferred tax assets
WERERR
TEEAITE
Depreciation
allowance in
REE Group excess of related BiE BEEE et
(EMTFT) (HK$°000) depreciation Provisions Tax losses Total
R-ZZEZNFHA—H At 1 April 2009 (36) 53,974 20,383 74,321
AEERBEEREA Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(3FR) 2 IERER I 558 - to the income statement
BIEREERHENESE during the year, net, including
R A IEERE a tax charge of HK$379,000
751379,0007T due to the effect of a change in
(H1s#11) the effective tax rate (note 11) 36 11,772 (11,083) 725
b 5 B Exchange realignment - 176 67 243
RZZE—TF At 31 March 2010 and
=A=+—8BkK 1 April 2010
—E-ZTFPMA—H - 65,922 9,367 75,289
AEERBERFTA Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(k) 2 IRERL TR to the income statement
SFEE(KAELL) during the year, net (note 11) - 1,925 (1,672) 253
b 5 B Exchange realignment - 2,892 411 3,303
RZE—F Gross deferred tax assets
=A=+—H recognized in the
ZHERNGATEMNE  consolidated statement of
BRI & EBE financial position at 31 March 2011 - 70,739 8,106 78,845
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29. IEEFLIIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

RAEB I REEBERNREBRBE
292,727,00070( —Z E —Z F: B
262,416,0007T ) KR 70 R B K Bk A
#58499,0007T( —E — T F : B
70,182,000t ) - AJ iR sHER1S 54518
ZAAIBEZERTEN o BT —
—F=A=+—BRBEZERB R
TEET AT A EE AR R B K FERY AR &) R
FiTE 5188 532,421,000t ( — 2 — &
& ¢ #%44,039,0007T) 50+ AR ER S
NRIESESEHE— RIS - WETERE
A N AT B 1R - U R X
LEERRELERIEEE - TLARERE
IEFIAEEF - BiEE26,078,0007T
—T— T B%26,143,0007T ) K9
MIBEE A RIBEEE R TFRE
HY o HAbEBAIAEREIRTE o

BB EFERE - NP BIARRER
HINERERIINEREESTIRIRERE
HMI0O% BT - 8 — TS N\F—F—H
BERWEAN -—_EE+F+_A=1
—HEERIAEF o fWhREINERE
EFMERDEERETBRBIRL - BIFT88
HRABEMINHMBRIE - KEBRFA
HE AT E RB5%5K10% °

R-ZB——FE=ZA=+—0  XEER
Fp B K B 37 BB BB A B AR B AR EE i
MO ENNATR ERELERE  HE
BRZHEENENEERAES OB
#562,832,0007L( — T —ZF : B
270,110,0007C) - EER A * ZFM
BARTARAIEER A RARSER=Z
ZNF—A—BERIEFH -

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$292,727,000
(2010: HK$262,416,000) and in Mainland China of HK$58,499,000
(2010: HK$70,182,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Except
for tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$32,421,000 (2010:
HK$44,039,000) as at 31 March 2011 to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilized, deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilized. Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses
of HK$26,078,000 (2010: HK$26,143,000) that will expire within five
years from the date losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement was
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates during the year were
5% or 10%.

At31 March 2011, no deferred tax has been recognized for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China, of which the aggregate
amount of temporary differences have not been recognized totalled
approximately HK$562,832,000 (2010: HK$270,110,000). In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

M-ZT——E=fF=+—0 " TEHRE
MEREE 2R EBEKIHMEB A TR
ERENEREE R QEMERNET
FRIE A &S £ 4978 %49,939,0007t( =
T—ZF : #E#846,122,0007T) °

ﬁi%}fﬁ_??ﬂiﬁﬁ +t5ﬁﬁ7rﬁz
RIEFT 2 BEMEBTE - AERBA

Z PTG BB R h25% N # £20% - E
TE-TFOA-ARBER - RERZ
ZT-ZEFERNATRBBEM2E—FER]
ZBEMETUE - FIEHHEE—FHh
20% FHE17% + BRI BHBER -

At 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investments in subsidiaries established in Taiwan
for which deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax have
not been recognized totalled approximately HK$49,939,000 (2010:
HK$46,122,000).

According to an amendment to the Income Tax Law of Taiwan enacted
on 27 May 2009, the income tax rate for the Taiwanese subsidiaries
decreased from 25% to 20% effective from 1 April 2010. A further
amendment to the Income Tax Law of Taiwan enacted on 15 June
2010, the income tax rate further decreased from 20% to 17% effective
from the same date.

AN B A B IR AR R R 2 AR B AR A There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
BHowE- dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
30. ®A 30. SHARE CAPITAL
(CEFIT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
JETE Authorized:
1,000,000,0000% & i@ % 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
% & #0.107T of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEITREEET Issued and fully paid:
629,255,6000% (—ZZ—=4F : 629,255,600 (2010:
629,187 ,600/% ) & E A% 629,187,600) ordinary shares
HREEE0.107T of HK$0.10 each 62,926 62,919

F A - BEM 768,000/ i i i 2 R IE
RAFE BB 1.088TT 2 TR EE
TTE(MEE3L) - /it - AERESKE
#)78%135,0007C (RFHA BT H ) B
768,000/ & fX M & ¥0.107C 2 &
A
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During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 68,000 share
options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$1.988 per
ordinary share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 68,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before issue
expenses, of approximately HK$135,000 in aggregate.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital are as follows:

21T 21T igvi)

ZRRHE [ RERR

Number of Issued Share
ordinary shares share premium st
in issue capital account Total

EBETT  BEFT  EETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZEZNFNMA—H At 1 April 2009 628,833,600 62,883 506,374 569,257
JETTIE 2 BERR A Share options exercised 354,000 36 668 704
RZE—ZF At 31 March 2010 and

=A=+—HK 1 April 2010

—ET-FF

MH—H 629,187,600 62,919 507,042 569,961
TR 2 B it Share options exercised 68,000 7 128 135
RZE—F

=A=+—H At 31 March 2011 629,255,600 62,926 507,170 570,096
BB RE 31. SHARE OPTIONS

REARANRZEZ=_FNA=Z+=
HERITZBRREAFASLBAZER
RER ARRERA—ERERTE
(120024 51 &l 1) B #E20024F 51 & 4%
2 B TR TR A AU AR B3k
PR AE FRZE 7 R o

2002F T Bl Z FHIBEINNT -

(a) BW

HEERZ2EBARAEERFELN
#RIEHL BB T LA R E) ek B -

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 23 August 2002, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). Share options under the
2002 Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The particulars of the 2002 Scheme are as follows:
(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.
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31.IBR (&) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) BEA (b) Participants
(i) EBEMPLE Sk MIER (i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
f% B (AR $B2002E 5t 2] 7 F including any independent non-executive director) and
) sk B IERR AR AT ) 2 (A employee (whether full time or part time) of, or
NI

(@) EAER(THENTTH
FE]TT - BIRETELIE
HITES) MER(THE
EREGRE) - 3%

(b) ERNEFAZEM[A (b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for,
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as

defined under the 2002 Scheme) or any company controlled
by a controlling shareholder;

(i) HAAREBTAKE ST A (i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of
P& P BR Sk 1% R PR BR 2R il 2 A AT the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
NBIFETZEMNEARES controlled by a controlling shareholder; and
AR

(iii) ANEE TR B k(TR % (i) (a) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
el R B B ) 2 A contractor or distributor of,

ALz :

(a) EAEBRAERH
AHRERRZEAN - RBH

(b) fE1{a] A = sk {82 42 4 5 (b) any person or entity that provides research, development
7 BRI EMBM R or other technological support or any advisory,
ST - BEREM consultancy, professional or other services in respect of
HE b B REIER 2 AR business operations to,

&
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31.lBRHE(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

B8EAE)

() Ems IR Z (EFIHE

B
& g

(d) ERFIRBZEMES

o

FR2002F &I E - 2HABRE
IS 2B A _ LR B2
BRE P Z (R A F] °

ATFRITEBRHE LR

RAFIRHEE - 5 %3#49,072,760
fREBR(HBERARQR B ET
f&7X7.80% ) A] 31T ©

BUSRATERER LR

B AR 52002F 5T &l 2 IR R B 1THE
SN - BRI2 M ATEER+ZEA
NEBEREERZES AL  RE
20024F 5T &l R AN R Al (E ] H Ab
MRREETBIFTRER T 2 B (R 1E
Bt - BT REARITE 2 BR
W) T OATTEE - PR 1T Ri§ 81T 2
fR 1 LR SHBBA A R E BT
REI1% o

IREEREREEBRZHR

MR HBREZ B HFR - K

RABESZRNELRFTIEENR
%E/H\HFEﬂ °

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Participants (continued)

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the 2002 Scheme, the participants shall
include any company controlled by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants.

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 49,072,760 ordinary shares are available for issue which
represent approximately 7.80% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to any
participant (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding share
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise
approved in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or such
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company determines
at the time of grant.
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31.IBRHE(E)

®

(g

(h)

()

BRERTEALXAZRENRED
R(mA)

PR B - AR REERG
ETRERENITFERI N EARA 2 &
RHBR(WA) ©

BEABREENSERSROAR

EIRHEREZL 2 AR(BEZ
BN+ RRAANEESXBEBZE
B REITNBEREZNR - F
f17#1.007T °

EERERETEEZEE

TR AR A T S 1 2 BB i
THREFBARRESTRRE - H
TEEREL R TIGESE

() BMXPANREBRELZEA
BEXRAE 2 EBRETE
(BEAMAREER):

(i) REERLAHAREEXA
R PrE 2 B RARER
o EBEFORHE R

(iii) EBZEE -
2002F 5T EIER N 2 B MY
FRARIR2002F 5 MR R ITHE R
S 20026 ET Bl 2 BRFEM AT

FWER—_BE——ENA-T=
Bgm °
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

)]

(g

(h)

()

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors of the
Company will determine the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted within
forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer was made.
The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the share options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option shall be determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of grant, which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.
Remaining life of the 2002 Scheme
The 2002 Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on

23 August 2012 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the 2002 Scheme.
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3. (&) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
F IR T B A A A BB AR 2R K No share option was granted, lapsed or cancelled during the year.
s EE5Y o T4 AR E NI E20024F 5 The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 Scheme
B B AR T 2 BE A during the year:
SENZBERER SRTHEE"
Name or category of BREsA R RS MR Exercise price
participants Number of share options Date of grant* Exercise period per share**

RZT-TE FRRE  FREAE FRAN R-E--%
mA—A Granted Exercised lapsed =A=1-H

At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2010 the year the year the year 2011
(RIAIE) (RIAIE) V-
(DIMFY) (DIMPY) HKS
ESHIERR
Directors or substantial
shareholders
BEE
Chi Kin CHIANG 334,000 - - - 334,000 1132003 11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
EWR 332,000 - - - 332,000 1132003 11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.988
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11312003 11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
666,000 - - - 666,000
13t Subtotal 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
EE(RESN
Employees (other than directors)
aft 10,000 - - - 10,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1988
In aggregate 24,000 - - - 24,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
210,000 - (68,000) - 142,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1988
100,000 - - - 100,000 1132003 11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1988
/NET Subtotal 344,000 - (68,000) - 276,000
25 Total 1,344,000 - (68,000) - 1,276,000
 BERECEBHEI AREBHERTT *  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
PHARFI B LE © commencement of the exercise period.
o WEAREHAR  ORKAL RS E MR ** The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the
MRAE M - REARRE 2 TR (B THHEE - case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s
share capital.
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Mt -

(1) RZZBZ2=F=A+-RAZLBRER
Wi ERE#1.98TT -

(2) 2002t &2 BMAERFEITEZIE
Rt 2 pnie T B iy W (LA T

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(1) The closing price of the ordinary shares on 11 March 2003 was HK$1.98
per share.

(2) The weighted average closing prices of the shares in which the share
options were exercised during the year by the participants of the 2002
Scheme were as follows:

IREF W TE

Weighted average closing prices
BETEAA—X RITER
Immediately before On the date
SHEAZHEARER Name or category of participants the date of exercise of exercise
JEIE S
HK$ HK$
EE(BRESIN Employees (other than directors) 3.81 3.87

(3) BIF20025HE BN ELBREZN
B REE1.007T °

(4) F A - 68,000/ f Iz 1 & 17 E - &
{5b %% 7768,000/% & % [l {88 #0.107T
ZARBEBE - RIEMBRAL B
7,0007T BA B2 B 13 )4 (B 49 78 #5128,000
TEORFF AT - FFBE#HFINI T
MiFE30 ©

(6) RZE——F=A=+—8 AQAR
120024 51 £1 51,276,000 ( = Z —
T4 1 1,344,000 ) BERAE S ARTTIE ©
IR ARITE Z B2 BUETTE - kAR
REREGZERER  BEETEI
1,276,0000% & % E B B #0.107T 2 &
A I8 N AR 478 5 128,000 7T A
Rt i B 478 %2,409,0007T (Rt A
BT -
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(3) The share options granted under the 2002 Scheme are for a consideration
of HK$1.00 per grant.

(4) 68,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of
68,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company and new share
capital of approximately HK$7,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$128,000 (before issue expenses), as detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

(5) As at 31 March 2011, the Company had 1,276,000 (2010: 1,344,000)
share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme. The exercise in full of
the share options outstanding would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 1,276,000 additional ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company, and additional share capital
of approximately HK$128,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$2,409,000 (before issue expenses).
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32. & 32.RESERVES

A

AEBAFEBEFENRERELE
EREFARBRESRETZT] - RUH
RRESLESCENHT -

RESERRE  RBEEHENARA
7 R R LER AR A0 A IR A B8 HS — &8
DBRGEHEREE — P AR 2 BEARE
B - EERENHEEDZARER
50%8; - SIAEF B REAR - MEE
AR IR B MRS 1R

REBETEHIHBECERTINGER
BREZED - ARBNFEARLREZE
B A B AR AR D BRI N AT
(L RARRFIER 2R EE%
HiFBRERREEEEEMEARS0% -

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 55 to 56 of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profits after
tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When the capital
reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to 50% of the
capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized
at anytime to offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, certain of
the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which are
restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of their
registered capital.
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32. (&) 32. RESERVES (continued)
BB EXEE
RERR R
Share Capital EXfHE KRERR
AT Company premium redemption Capital Retained st
CE#FT) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
RZZEZNFMNA—A At 1 April 2009 506,374 295 2,904 125,608 635,181
REEREAWNE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 60,613 60,613

BAITHIAR (M15230) Issue of new shares (note 30) 668 - - - 668
HE_ZTTNGF Final dividend for the

—A=+—HLt year ended

FEZRBRE 31 March 2009 - - - (31,442)  (31,442)
rhEARS B (FTaE13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (12,583) (12,583)
RZZE—TF At 31 March 2010

=A=+—Ak and 1 April 2010

—ETF

mA—H 507,042 295 2,904 142,196 652,437
AEEFBE2HEWES Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 263,929 263,929

BATHR (M15230) Issue of new shares (note 30) 128 - - - 128
BHE-Z-TF Final dividend for the

—A=+—H1 year ended

FE 2 REIRE 31 March 2010

(H1aE13) (note 13) - - - (62,919) (62,919)
R EARR B (KTE13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (50,340)  (50,340)
R-_T——%

=A=+—8 At31 March 2011 507,170 295 2904 292866 803,235
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33.AAE 33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RIREEAK - RERISRERBME 2k At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
RBEWT : for in the financial statements were as follows:
REE AAFE
Group Company
(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010 2011 2010
HETE=ZZEEMRME  Guarantees given to financial
IRE TSI RO B AR - institutions in connection with
RABRE facilities granted to third parties,
at the maximum 144,773 87,089 - -
?Jﬁ?l%gfﬁ%”ﬂ—]ﬁﬁﬁg Facilities available to subsidiaries
R4 RITHER for which guarantees were
given to banks - - 467,475 604,923
144,773 87,089 467,475 604,923

34.

RZZE—F=A=+—H  ARa%
BB RAREEMREAERITHER
BF A= E 54 A75%103,940,0007T

— T T4 : HH#120,964,00070) ©

IR

MW_ZE——F=ZA=+—08"  BRAK
EENPREARERE TEEEY

ERNBERBEZEREESLLE
%10,923,0007c( =T — T F : B
12,755,0007¢) °

RZZ——F=A=+—8  BH4%
ERPEAEBEZWE  BEKRE
% BERNERBEZEARESRY
AAB#E35952, 000 ( ZF—FF B
#19,332,0007T) °

R-—E——FE=—A=+—RA AL TE
BEANAE(ZT—TF ) -

As at 31 March 2011, the guarantees given by the Company to banks
in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were utilized to the
extent of approximately HK$103,940,000 (2010: HK$120,964,000).

34.COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the construction
of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$10,923,000 (2010: HK$12,755,000).

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had capital commitments, which were
contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$35,952,000 (2010: HK$19,332,000).

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had no significant commitments
(2010: Nil).
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FA BRI REKRE MM EAKE
MERIN  REBMEBNATHEAL

(a) ZANE[E LAE 73,934,000 ( ==
—Z 4 B ¥57,440,0007T ) A —
Bt N RIATB S FERS TR 2 48
KB IR BUEFRAE B [RMEY -

O REERA—FEAT 0 BR
BAH ORI BRAR(TEER
1) - LAE B 7 #11,323,0007T
—ZT—TF : #¥16,729,0007T)
BEREME - FR KRXHTHAAR
SEZFHERER S °

BEELREBEEREE(MALRS
ARBZEF)RBEEBZHE
ANMPRE SRR ESEESR
L ZBMEBAN) AHREFERE
AR RARPRRAE LB0%ZRE
% ANEREXARAREESR
BHARZRI - FrARERIIR
RER/NEEZBERT] - ALR
ZRAAREEEZHEENRET R
B BAR M AGRFETT -

(b) AEETRETEABFHM -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group also had the following related party transactions during
the year:

(a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to HK$73,934,000
(2010: HK$57,440,000) from an associate at prices and on terms
similar to those offered by unrelated suppliers of the Group.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of HK$11,323,000
(2010: HK$16,729,000) from a related company, Zhen Jian Mould
& Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ"). These transactions
were also continuing connected transactions of the Group during
the year.

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors
of the Company, and their respective associates (which are also
associates of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company)
together control the exercise of 80% of the voting power at general
meetings of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
the entire equity interest of CC-SZ. CC-SZ is therefore a related
company of the Group. The terms of the above transactions were
conducted with prices and terms mutually agreed by the Group
and the related company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

REE Group

(E¥FT) (HK$°000) 2011 2010

MHIRERA Short term employee benefits 33,108 17,024

X Rz = Post-employment benefits 48 48
33,156 17,072
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—ET——F=A=+—H 31 March 2011
5. BEALERB(E) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) A » Chen Hsong Marketing (c) During the year, Chen Hsong Marketing International Limited, an
International Limited ( 4~ 2 &) — & indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
E2EWBEAR)BEHIKE(RK agreement with CH Investments, the immediate holding company
RElZ BEEER AR — IR of the Company, to dispose of the unlisted equity investment
ZcHE—ERPEKREZIELT in Mainland China, for a consideration of HK$94,740,000, as
I E - B AEE94,740,000 disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

7T CIRMTEERR I 238 -

36. ¢FTESE 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RIBEHR - TRER S IAEZRE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
BT : as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
CREE Financial assets
2011 2010
AfHE e
SRRE EXR SREE AR
Available-for-  FEWRFRIE Available-for  JEURFE
X&E Group sale financial  Loans and #3t  salefinancial  Loans and @t
(B¥TFr) (HK$000) investments  receivables Total investments  receivables Total
AHRHEERKRE  Available-for-sale equity investment - - - 124,057 - 124,057
[EE 5 R ZER Trade and bills receivables - 778,023 778,023 - 723432 723432
AETE ~ FBNFUE  Financial assets included
R E A FEURER R in deposits, prepayments
MeREE and other receivables - 40,608 40,608 - 34197 34197
BRI Pledged bank deposits - 94,044 94,044 - 94,329 94,329
BeMRITER Cash and bank balances - 849,503 849,503 - 769,862 769,862
- 1,762,178 1,762,178 124057 1,621,820 1,745877
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2011

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

oz 3=Ri Financial liabilities
DA AT EZ
tHas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
REE Group
CEETFT) (HK$°000) 2011 2010
BB S5 MEBRER Trade and bills payables 530,396 630,539
O A B Ath ST BR R IR FE AT Financial liabilities included
BEMNSRAE in other payables and accruals 51,636 46,039
HEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 89,669 41,964
671,701 718,542
EREE Financial assets
BERRERRE
Loans and receivables
AKATFE Company
(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
FEUCB BN B R FUFEE Amounts due from subsidiaries, net 1,302,827 1,286,149
FREART R E M R Financial assets included
RN RIEE in deposits and other receivables 803 725
B MRTTHER Cash and bank balances 50,917 55,825
1,354,547 1,342,699
o a=Ri Financial liabilities
DB EZ
tHas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
AAHE] Company
(B¥For) (HK$'000) 2011 2010
JESTHT B A R BR X Amounts due to subsidiaries 633,523 785,600
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37.¢mEREEEERBEK 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

AEETESHMITABRERRE LIRITHE
7 - FIRITIEHR - BRES ERER
W BMEEEER - BB S REEE
K B EMRTUANGTBIRITER -

HASEER T AMEENEIZRRA
MEER - SNERER - EERBR LR
ARk - AREYREERHFER,
% o AZE R T AN RRMREZ
FRBAOBEREN T - BEEEEEN
B S - DARECR N B A1 A Rt e
TTEEREE

IEIEN

AEBREHNTISN XSS ER TR
EAREENTERITERAH - AEE
SRERENZER  ERERF X
REREF - &E BERAE e LARIEA B R

G o
2N

SN LB

ARBOSNERRFREELS - DR
RNAERAE  URRAPEAERA
EEOFRA -

AEBBINERZ ZER - ZEFRBRIFR
AEBHAIDHELIRBERS - A
ELRARERRZE -

EREERERUARTRARBESRS
ERNR 5 RRERTBEKREME &
SNEEERR  INERE - @EEEINER
SN ©

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group had insignificant interest rate risk. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate exposure,
if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in operations in
Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales and
purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars (“US$”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$ and RMB and its investments in
Mainland China and Taiwan and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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37.cRRAREEEERBEE) 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

S EBR ()

TRINRAEBBRBIAT S A= W
EHR(EMAEEMEERSTENE
RTIEETRAREERNSEA 8
“@JE‘JE&WV( HREBEERAER

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$ and RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

SNERE R BRBE AT

#hnGd) i GRA) R
Increase/ Increase/ i1, (GE )
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
CE&FoT) (HK$'000) currency rate (%) before tax in equity*
2011
WA REEETTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 47,230 -
M AREEETLE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (47,230) -
M AREEFZETLHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 9,946 -
M AREEFETLEE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (9,946) -
2010
WA REEETTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 45,575 -
WA REEE T E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (45,575) -
M ARSI FZETLHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 10,013 -
WA REEETTEE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (10,013) -
* NEERBRT *  Excluding retained profits
FERE Credit risk

SRR EEERR ZE T TS
EETHEEMSAEERMNRZNH
BRH AL -

FEWE ZRRRHE AR R E R B
BEEETF REE - I REERE
HIR - AEBEeERSRENE SER
BRI B8R - LARER AN AT U @ 58
B RSRERRE - Bt - AERER
MERRILTERX -
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Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the Group
thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables are determined and monitored
by management on an ongoing basis. In addition, at the end of each
reporting period, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to
impairment is not significant.
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37.¢REREEEERBE(E) 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

EEmE(E)

AEFBEMEREE(RIFRS MRTT
BE)NEERRIIERY T HENTT
5 ERARBHEERZETANEKR
1B - AEE AR AR I BRI E
EREERR - BB HNITBH
733

HRASER @ERA MEEENERP
X5 MEFERREHRER - EHEE
RERER,/ZPTTHETER - AEE
YA FHEEBREFEERR

BRASERKEZESMELNEER
R0 — SRR E R - SERNM R
RMFEE21 ©

RBETEE

AEERARRABDESTITE - A
EREESHERNAR - ZTAZEE
TR BENESREEERS) R
EREEN  BRKESREERERTON
AMARBRAELERERE -

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, arises from default of the counterparty with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
The Group is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

AEENTRAB(BRAARE)NE
EHRZEATHRITIRA N RER) 0 E)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based on

HIR ST - the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
2011
=@EANLER
+=@BAR
More than 3 +=@A
=f@AA months and Bk
TEH Group Less than 3 less than 12 More than #st
CEEFT) (HK$°000) months months 12 months Total
JEE 5N EIRRR Trade and bills payables 474,750 55,646 - 530,396
a0 A B Ath B ST BR R I Financial liabilities included in
ErtAENsREE other payables and accruals 51,636 - - 51,636
STESRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 89,669 - - 89,669
METE=FEZEM Guarantees given to financial
RIEGLMBEED institutions in connection
BR SRS with facilities granted to
third parties, at the maximum 144,773 - - 144,773
760,828 55,646 - 816,474
2010
=@EANER
+=@AR
More than 3 +=@EA
={@BA months and Bk
rEH Group Less than 3 less than 12 More than et
CE¥FT) (HK$°000) months months 12 months Total
[ERTE 5 REHEERER Trade and bills payables 527,736 99,582 3,221 630,539
O A B Ath B ST BR R I Financial liabilities included in
ErtAENeREaE other payables and accruals 46,039 - - 46,039
STRERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 41,964 - - 41,964
MEFE=FEE Guarantees given to financial
RSB TSR R institutions in connection
BR - &mKREE with facilities granted to
third parties, at the maximum 87,089 - - 87,089
702,828 99,582 3,221 805,631
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37.

38.

TREREERRRBEE)

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2011

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

REBESER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
=EAR
Less than 3 months

AATH Company
CEMTFor) (HK$°000) 2011 2010
FEASHI B A A BRFK Amounts due to subsidiaries 633,523 785,600
e NGIEIN Facilities available to subsidiaries

EEMmRMELAIRTT for which guarantees were

HIFELR given to banks 467,475 604,923

1,100,998 1,390,523

ERER Capital management

AEEEAEENEE R EAMEE
B AT B 08 ) RAR ISR A AR LY
E R R R RAR IR
RS o

ng

OF]

AREERBEEAR R BB B IE M
BEEARE - BRFAFHBEAR
B AEEHERBIRTREAOBE
AR B E AR BRI TH R - BE-F
——F=A=1t—BR-ZT-TF=H
=T -RUEFER ZFELEEZAE
1% BERSE P AT AR -

A

gEoh s REETEBFRBEEMRN
(Bl@ansEERERBAE)ERE
AN o REEBRBBFEDFRSBEE
FEER ©

PR R

HIHERRON S ——F A =-+=
REEERHEH -

38.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net current
assets, which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 22 June 2011.
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TR Z AR RESRRYAFER
KREXEELTEAFELARBNAEHEE
FETEH D ZHMBRR - EFELRA
FIHESH B AR ZFIERBRILE -

Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2011

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

VAN 2]
AL S 28T EZEDL
kg E RAEE Percentage
Place of BIER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
AT EE registration issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE
Held indirectly
TBERARNBR AR @ =) il 100 SHE F B
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited @ ¥ & #50,000,0007T plastic injection
NT$50,000,000 moulding machines
BB R R EE i, %42,100,0007T 100 BERHEREEA
CRIDABBRAT W ElEipN 23 US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong CAD CAM PRC/ of precision moulds
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. @ Mainland China
EIEM B EEREER AR B gl 100 REMEREERE
Chen Hsong Finance and Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of financial
Management Services Limited 2T and management
HK$2 services
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2011

EAREE
LR 5 56) EEADL
RikEE BRATEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NEERE registration issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERFE(E)
Held indirectly (continued)
BHETERERCRIDERAR D hE, 5£44,000,0007T 100 SEELES
Chen Hsong Industrial Park BTN 173 US$4,000,000 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. @ PRC/
Mainland China
B FEERR AR i LmikssoT 100 R ERTS
Chen Hsong Logistics Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Provision of
Company Limited BREERERD @ - logistics services
785 #5,000,0007T
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$5,000,000
R AR AR e TmaB 2T 100 THE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Company, Limited EINERERIER G @ - plastic injection
78 #50,000,0007T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred @
HK$50,000,000
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2011

P YN 2]
FRALFEf 28T EmEIE
k&&= BATEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NEERE registration issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERFE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
EERERECRIDBRAT @@ e, 78 #24,000,0007T 100 B8 I S & ST
Chen Hsong Mechanical and ey N7 HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Electrical Equipment PRC/ of tie bars
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. V@ Mainland China
BRI (BR)BRAR V@ hE %4£8,010,0007¢ 100 BUERIHET P
Chen Hsong Machinery N7 US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
(Ningbo) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection
Limited (V@ Mainland China moulding machines
EHEEMORYDBRAT @ Bl %£417,130,0007T 100 FHE R IHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery AP B K e US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection
Limited © @ Mainland China moulding machines
R AR A F @ =) | Rl 100 SIS MIHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Taiwan Company, Limited @ ¥14#165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NT$165,000,000 moulding machines
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2011

EARER
RV s 5 56) EEADL
RigEmE BRATEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NEEE registration issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERFE(E)
Held indirectly (continued)
EEEEEABRAR & EimAR 100 HERTEA
Chen Hsong Precision Mould Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
Company Limited 78 M4,410,0007T precision moulds
HK$4,410,000
BELHORIDERATD@ HE 7##10,000,0007T 100 SHE F B
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing Fh B K B HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, Limited ®® PRC/ plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
EHERHEAR AT B mR 100 SHE F B
Chen Hsong Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
BT plastic injection
HK$2 moulding machines
BRSO BRI R HE £$604,1007T 100 SUERIHE T
EEBRIEHAR AR @@ EaEipN 23 US$604,100 Manufacture and sale
Chen Ning Plastics Machinery PRC/ of plastic injection
Company, Limited @@ Mainland China moulding machines
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2011

PN 2]
AL FEf 28T EEEIE
RiREHE RAEE Percentage
Place of BER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NEERE registration issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
BT RS E B i, 5£45,200,0007T 100 SUERIHE T
HWHBR AR O@ AR US$5,200,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company Limited ®
#ILTIERE RS =k hEl, %$2,100,0007T 100 BUE MIHE T B
AR AT L@ ElEipN 73 US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De No. 3 PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company, Limited @@
BRI TR RS T A e %47,900,0007T 100 FHE R IHE T B
BRARO® =N US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection

Precision Machinery
Company, Limited @
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TEWMB AR Principal Subsidiaries

R-_FE——F=A=+—H As at 31 March 2011
PN R
3L FEf 28T EHZEI
RS BRATEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable

NGIECE registration issued share/ to the FEEK

Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities

BERE(E)

Held indirectly (continued)

BT EEE A BRI e 2%4:3,000,0007C 100 BERHERESE

BRAF 0@ SlETpN 173 US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale

Intra-Italy Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors

(Foshan Shunde) Mainland China
Company, Limited @@
RIEHRERREERAR @W FE ZE£12,000,0007T 100 B R IHEE M
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision AR 3 K b US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Equipment Limited @ PRC/ of casting parts
Mainland China

Hia - Notes:

(1) HHEARRINGBEERE - (1) These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

(2) HHEARAFINGEMEDRE - (2) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

(3) ERFRHEEERN A X RGN BERRE - (3) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights to
mETKRRA S FIRERE IR HIENNE vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a return of
BRI EE B AR 2 Kbk o capital in a winding-up.

(4) BEXRRBTBEMETR - (4) English company names are translated for identification purpose only.
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IFEMBHE Five-Year Financial Summary

NWTABEErASEATAENBRFED A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
PR EEZ VR EROES  BE - interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
BENMIETEREL o the published audited financial statements, is set out below.
E RESULTS
HE=—HA=1+—HIFE Year ended 31 March
(GEEFor) (HK$’000) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Wz Revenue 2,423,528 1,806,334 1,603,107 2,316,136 2,155,014
£ | Profit from operating activities 417,340 204,415 107,134 342,263 337,352
& R AN Finance costs (2,091) (1,856) (4,668) (4,419) (2,387)
FE(hE &N A Share of profits less losses

S FRE R of associates 6,325 6,137 1,386 1,130 2,159
R F5 BT ) Profit before tax 421,574 208,696 103,852 338,974 337,124
gt H Income tax expense (75,101) (54,778) (16,700) (18,129) (24,833)
REZ A Profit for the year 346,473 153,918 87,152 320,845 312,291
SFER: Attributable to:
AKArEZFEA A Equity holders of the Company 343,263 153,500 85,786 317,829 312,276
JEPERR S Non-controlling interests 3,210 418 1,366 3,016 15

346,473 153,918 87,152 320,845 312,291

BE BERFERES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
R=A=+—H As at 31 March
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
BERE Total assets 3,832,536 3,493,038 2,885,343 3,118,939 2,661,539
BE#E Total liabilities (1,056,008) (1,014,828)  (533,189)  (726,035)  (576,194)
IR Non-controlling interests (18,198) (14,144) (13,683) (12,041) (7,967)

2,758,330 2,464,066 2,338,471 2,380,863 2,077,378
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Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

BRI T EBAEE13E15%5%
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

E5E / Tel: (852) 2665 3222

{8E / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

#8311k / Website: www.chenhsong.com.hk
ZE3[ / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com.hk
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